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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ, CHAIR:  This is the calling to order the Senate Select Committee on Air Quality in the Central Valley.  I’d like to first and foremost thank the participants who have voluntarily come here today, and I’d like to thank all other individuals who have worked with my staff to have this committee get a better understanding of this very important critical issue.

I should say this is the third of thirteen hearings that this select committee is planning on holding on the subject of air quality in the Central Valley.  During our first hearing in Sacramento, we heard about the health effects of air pollution, particularly on the residents in the Central Valley.  We had family members, school personnel, doctors and nurses, testify about the growing asthma rates that are suffocating our residents in this valley.  We also heard about the increased costs of additional medication to treat asthma and the scientific research that draws some direct connection between increased level of particulate matter and respiratory illnesses.

Just last week this committee met, as you probably know, in Fresno City Hall, to hear about the increase in particulates from the Fresno Waste Fire that forced students and teachers to miss days of school and families to suspend many of their outdoor activities.

Fresno County, as you probably know, has the highest rate of child asthma in the state of California.  Over 30,000 valley residents, and many of them children and seniors, suffer from some sort of chronic respiratory condition.  However, it’s clear to us that the health effects alone is not the only issue that we have in our valley when it comes to air. 

The purpose of today’s hearing is simply to talk about those other issues, and that’s simply the mandates and the penalties for missing what we would call, the clean air standards put forth by the EPA. 

The goal of today is to talk about what that would do to new businesses and jobs, as well as our transportation dollars.  

Now it’s important that we ask these important questions now and make some necessary changes, if possible, to clean our air before, we believe, it’s too late.

I’d like you to know that today we’re going to hear an overview of the mandate process, the implementation of these mandates on the local level, the effects of the process has on businesses, and, particularly, farms and dairies, and the effects of the possible sanctions on the economy in our transportation system. 

In addition to listening to prepared testimony, I want everyone to know that I do have quite a few questions to ask our regulators and our industries about the mandates.  I want to be very clear that the purpose of these questions are not to grill you, but instead, to try to get some answers to some long outstanding open issues that we’ve heard both from industry, and also from the effected communities.

So, with that, I’d like to go ahead and start this hearing.  I want to thank everyone for coming.  We’d like to have Mr. Broadbent, Jack Broadbent, Environmental Protection Agency, please come up.  Thank you for joining us.  We very much appreciate you spending some time with us.  And then I will probably allow you to make some statements, and then, of course, I some questions.

MR. JACK BROADBENT:  Good morning, Senator and members of the committee.  Again, my name is Jack Broadbent.  I’m the Director of the Air Division for the Pacific Southwest Region of EPA, and that includes, California, Arizona, Nevada, and Hawaii.  And, it’s very much of a pleasure to be here today to talk about essentially the federal control mandates here that the San Joaquin Valley faces.

The potential costs associated with the San Joaquin Valley missing the federal control mandates under the Clean Air Act are very serious in terms of human health, in environment, and economic development.  Addressing the air issues in the valley is one of the highest priorities of the EPA.  It also represents one of our biggest challenges, since we’ve targeted the dirty air in southern California, specifically Los Angeles, the Los Angeles basin since the 1970s and ‘80s.

I want to thank Senator Florez for his leadership, introducing legislation to improve the air quality in the valley.

Mr. Chairman, I have prepared testimony that I have introduced into the record.  What I will do is, summarize some of the key highlights of that.  I won’t specifically be going from testimony, but rather go hit some of the key points.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.

MR. BROADBENT:  Today’s topic is, The Cost of Missing Federal Control Mandates. As you know, the San Joaquin Valley has some of the dirtiest air in the country, especially with respect to particulate matter and ozone.

What I’d like to do is clearly describe five specific areas where we are working with the regulatory partners and various stakeholders to address the legal requirements under the federal Clean Air Act.  And in each of these areas we have separate mandates or separate sanctions that we all face in the valley.

These areas include the PM-10 plan that we are currently working on in terms with the San Joaquin Valley.  Also, with respect to ozone _______, the reduction of ozone levels here.  The implementation of the Title V Permit Program for major agricultural sources, which is the subject, of course, of SB 700.  And then revising the new source review SIP _________ San Joaquin Valley’s Reg 8.

Attached to my testimony and __________ handout is a summary of action requirements and deadlines for each of these areas that I mentioned.

Let me begin with the PM-10 serious area requirements.  And you’ll hear throughout my talk here this morning, and certainly as a result of your ___________ that missing or further delays on improving air quality in the valley will potentially result in some significant financial sanctions and federal actions.  So that is one of the most important points I have for you this morning.  And that is, that we take our responsibilities under the Clean Air Act very seriously.  We have imposed these sanctions in California in the past, and we’re fully prepared to do so in the future.  But nevertheless, we do believe that the San Joaquin Valley District and the state are working very cooperatively with us, and with the stakeholders to be able to address these. 

So let me talk a little bit about the different areas in which we face some significant deadlines.

As you know Senator, the San Joaquin Valley is a serious PM-10 nonattainment area that missed the attainment deadline of December 31, 2001.  Recently the EPA made a finding of ___________ the plan that _________ move the valley into attainment.  This finding will result in a two-to-one offset of sanctions by August 2003, and sanctions on highway transportation dollars on February 2004 if a serious area plan is not submitted.

Moreover, EPA is required to issue a federal implementation plan if we cannot approve the San Joaquin Valley’s serious area plan requirements by February of 2004.  So that’s a very specific deadline that we’re facing right now.

In the midst of all the delayed plan actions for serious nonattainment, the EPA was sued by environmental groups to promulgate a federal plan for when the valley was classified as moderate.

We understand that the state and the San Joaquin Valley air district are working on PM-10 plan which will address the Clean Air Act requirements as I mentioned.

Given the severity of the PM problem in the valley, we are hopeful that this plan will be submitted to EPA in time to avoid sanctions and a federal implementation.

___________ and hope that we can expect to see this plan submitted to us within the next month, no later than May of this year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that would be April?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s right.  As of February we expect to see a plan in April, no later than May of this year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. BROADBENT:  Senator, let me discuss ozone, which is another important air pollutant for which there are high concentrations experienced in this valley.

After failing to attain ____________ ozone standard by 1999, EPA classified the San Joaquin Valley, or we bumped them up to a severe ozone attainment status.  With that bump up, the valley has an attainment date of 2005 to come into attainment.  We gave the state until May 31, 2002, to satisfy the severe area planning requirements for the valley.  The state has not submitted that information to EPA, and we’ve issued a failure to submit a plan.  We did that on September 18, 2002.  This finding has the sanction clocks move forward, also believed to a two-to-one offset sanction by March of 2004, and highway sanctions by September 2004.

This is all I have in the attachment, as I mentioned before, on deadlines and sanctions.

We understand the valley believes that it is not possible to demonstrate attainment with the ozone standard by 2005.  And given the large amount of omission reductions that are still needed, approximately 150 tons today of VOC and also that same similar amount of NOx, the valley is considering requesting bumping itself up to extreme nonattainment, which would be the same designation that the Los Angeles basin now has.  While we have not yet received that, the serious area plan revision ___________ a bump up, we are hopeful that ___________ will allow the San Joaquin Valley to avoid the sanctions and the FIP, or the federal implementation plan, associated with our finding of failure to submit a severe area plan.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when would that plan have to be submitted to you in order to avoid that penalty?

MR. BROADBENT:  We believe it’s the fall timeframe of next year, we will actually be able to turn off the sanction clocks of those.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Fall of 2004?

MR. BROADBENT:  Well, let me clarify that.  The finding will lead to a two-to-one offset sanction clock being closed on March of 2004.  So we’re actually, excuse me, fall of this year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Fall of this year.

MR. BROADBENT:  We have been working quite a bit with San Joaquin Valley and the state, and we believe that they will be able to submit the necessary plans in the planning requirements so then we’re going to turn off the sanction clocks.

Let me turn now to the Title V permits and agricultural sources, which is, again, the subject of SB 700, Senator, because you know, it’s your legislation.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

MR. BROADBENT:  In early 2002, EPA was sued for granting approval of California’s permitting program.  This was because the Clean Air Act requires states to have the authority, all states, to have the authority to issue permits to all sources that must obtain them.

As you know, state law prohibits the permitting of equipment used in agricultural operations and the growing of crops and raising of fowl or animals.  ______________ that the judge would immediately order applications to be submitted, EPA entered into a settlement agreement with the three plans.  The agreement requires applications for diesel pumps to be submitted to EPA by May 14th of this year, and all other agricultural operations by August 1st of this year.

We believe that EPA will be in a position that once these applications are in, we’ll be able to start issuing permits in a third, a third, a third, over the next year-and-a-half.  We’re required to issue all permits by December 1, 2004.  However, we are hopeful that the state law will be amended so that the EPA will not be in a position that we will be issuing permits.  We do not believe that the EPA, that it makes sense for permitting to be done at the EPA level, but rather at a state or local level.  We think that’s the most appropriate level to be issuing permits for these sources.

Finally, Senator, let me discuss two other key areas where federal mandates are fast approaching.  In addition to the need to fix the Title V program, we also need to fix the permit program in the California State Implementation Plan.

The EPA just published a proposed rule finding that the state’s plan is substantially inadequate because air districts lack the authority to implement new source review requirements for agricultural operations.

Once legislation is adopted, CARB could provide necessary assurances by submitting opinions to the state attorney general’s that in effect they have that authority.  The state must provide its assurances for carrying out this authority by November 23, 2003.  And this is based on our proposed rule-making.

Finally, let me touch upon the Reg 8 actions and deadlines.  San Joaquin Valley still needs to demonstrate _________control measures for Regulation 8 by September 2004 to avoid sanctions.  Regulation 8 applies to what we call _________ sources which are part of the PM-10 problem here in San Joaquin Valley.  Sources covered by radiating include unpaved roads, unpaved parking lots, construction sites, local _________ storage and handling.  And we have been recently been sued by Earth Justice, relative to our proposed action in improving Regulation 8.  

The San Joaquin Valley District continues to work on both a reasonably available control measure and a __________ control measure analysis for Reg 8.  And we believe that this is the necessary steps in order to be able to remove the issues that’s been raised relative to Reg 8.

We believe that reg 8 will need to be a part of the PM-10 serious area plan that will be submitted to us soon.  We believe that amendments to that regulation are necessary in order to be able to secure the necessary __________ and it will be one of many actions that need to be taken to bring the valley into attainment on the PM-10 standard.

In conclusion, I’d like to, as I’ve already indicated, the EPA believes that the air quality issues in the Central Valley are a major challenge and deserve undivided attention.  We are committed to working with our partners, and through a stakeholder efforts, do what ever it takes to ensure health air for the future generations.

Again, I want to commend the Senator for his leadership in taking this attack on this important health issue.  I’ll be happy to answer any questions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Yes.  I have quite a few.  First, I’m going to skip over the PM-10, the ozone, and reg 8, and I’d like to kind of zero in on the Title V and the new source guidelines if I could.

Now, when you referred to new source, in the rule-making that was issued, there is a sentence in this, and let me quote it for you if I could.  I don’t know if you have the rule in front of you, but it says:  “A similar correction with respect to NSR and PSD permitting is necessary to comply with this proposed action.”  What is that telling us?

MR. BROADBENT:  Senator, the action that’s needed, and I guess I need some clarification on _________

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me have somebody hand that to you.  And I’m referring to the federal register that was issued Thursday, February 13th.  And I just wanted some clarification on that.  Why don’t you hold that for a minute.  I’ll get to it and some questions.  But that seemed to peak my interest as you were talking about new source guidelines.

Let’s start with some questions.  You mentioned Title V and the legislation, the proposed legislation, the draft legislation, that’s in -- we’re looking at right now, which is not in print for thirty days, SB 700.  And I’d first like to get your opinion.  If you can tell the committee how the EPA currently regulates agriculture in California?

MR. BROADBENT:  Certainly, Senator.  We regulate agriculture as an oversight agency.  Certainly, agricultural operations are oftentimes referred to as area sources.  They are essentially regulated by the San Joaquin Valley District through its burn program relative to agricultural burning operations through the implementation of its 

reg 8.  There is a whole variety of sources that are regulated by the local district.  Certainly, motor vehicles that are owned and operated by farming operations are -- essentially the authority to regulate those sources are at the state and federal level.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Those are the mobile sources?

MR. BROADBENT:  Those are the mobile sources.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Title II, okay.

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s right.  And essentially, CARB has authorities, we’ll hear later, for establishing standards, emission standards for on-road motor vehicles and certainly, farming operations certainly own the -- a lot of that kind of vehicles.  So we serve  more as an oversight function.  And we essentially establish standards by which local districts have to be able to vote and adopt regulations.  And, we have a series of standards that we apply across the country for those regulations to --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that would be my next question.  That is, how about the other forty-nine states, how is agriculture regulated to those other forty-nine states?  Exactly the same way?

MR. BROADBENT:  Exactly the same way, Sir.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of California, we’re not the only state then asked to comply to Title V permitting requirements under the federal Clean Air Act?  It’s intended to apply to all states?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct.  It applies to all states, Sir.  I wanted to point out, however, California is very unique.  It is the only area where you will find agricultural operations essentially very much a part of the attainment area that has a severe or possibly extreme attainment status.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I just want -- it’s every other state?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Forty-nine states other than California.  And why is it important that the state of California, in your opinion, and in the exemption of agriculture from the Clean Air Act -- I mean, you put a rule-making out.  Why is that important to you?

MR. BROADBENT:  Essentially, the fact that the California State Legislature prohibits the local districts from regulating on field agricultural operations puts a loophole with respect to the California Farm Aid Program.  Essentially, all the districts cannot indicate that they are permitting all major stationary sources with that prohibition in place.  And so we found ourselves in a situation where, of course, we settled with the litigants, but we could not take an action that would allow us to prove the overall California permitting program because of that loophole.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And, you’ve mentioned my legislation, SB 700, and I guess, do you have an opinion then on that draft legislation at this point?

MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir.  We believe that SB 700 will correct a deficiency and allow us to take action to improve California’s _____________.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now, at the beginning of this month, a colleague of mine, Senator Poochigian, wrote a letter regarding the possibility of repealing the ag exemption.  Did you receive that letter?

MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in that letter he had mentioned in essence a different way to achieve the exemption for certain types of sources, particularly diesel.  Can you describe that letter for this committee, and what was your response to that letter?  I read a little bit in the Fresno Bee about it this morning, but kind of get your take on that letter.

MR. BROADBENT:  Senator Poochigian had requested that -- he was requesting EPA’s opinion relative to some language that was being quoted that could seek to be able to address this deficiency.  We wrote back to the Senator, out of our headquarters, and indicated that the language needed to be further clarified relative to new source review requirements and other clarifications, namely the fact that we didn’t take it quite far enough.  We think that frankly, the language needs to be amended or struck, as your language does in SB 700, such that it removes the exemption __________.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So in comparing the two proposals, SB 700 and Senator Poochigian’s approach in the letter, then the EPA would view which is the best viable option in terms of meeting your deadline?

MR. BROADBENT:  The SB 700 language would be the language __________.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now, in the EPA notice that we were just talking about, February 13th, you proposed to repeal the ag exemption.  And in the notice you also addressed a new source review program; it was the document I mentioned earlier to you.  Can you briefly explain the new source review program for us?

MR. BROADBENT:  Certainly.  And I’ll explain as part of what our actions ________, Senator.  Essentially, the San Joaquin Valley went through -- the San Joaquin Valley District went through a series of amendments to their new source review program recently, this was at the end of last year, the beginning of this year, to correct a whole series of deficiencies the EPA had identified.  One of those deficiencies had to do with the fact they exempted agricultural operations.  They removed that agricultural exemption, but they still find themselves in a situation where they cannot permit on field agricultural operations because of the state law.  So we did the next best thing.  We wanted to be able to approve the MSR amendments because there was some transportation sanction dollars at risk, _______ sanctions that were clocks ticking.  So we took an action whereby -- and that’s______ speaks to -- where we put the state on notice indicating that the agricultural exemption that’s in state law needs to be removed because it prohibits local districts from essentially permitting on field agricultural operations both from the standpoint of having Title V permit, and then also a new source review requirements.  And that’s _______________ here, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I guess the question of the day for me would be then, given it’s very clear then, not only in your response back to Senator Poochigian, but also what you’re telling us here today is, that the ag exemption should be eliminated, number one.  But I guess the reason I asked you for the clarification on the sentence I gave you is that, are you saying then also as part of this proposed action, that we must go further then the ag exemption in terms of new source review.  Is that what that sentence is telling us from your interpretation?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct.  Of course this sentence was in the federal register and published prior to us seeing SB 700 __________________

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. BROADBENT:  So, the SB 700 will actually correct the agricultural exemption prohibition, but also correct our NSR concerns.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So the bill would do both of those?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And it would also allow the permitting process to take place at the local level you mentioned earlier?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So all three of those things.


MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the offset requirements we were talking about earlier, just on the legislation for a moment.  If SB 700 was passed, and let’s assume that through a negotiated processes with our agricultural industry and others, that we have a bill that somehow is tough, yet meets certain sorts of standards, I guess if the governor was to sign that bill, in all likelihood that bill would not go into effect until January 1, 2001, even if the Legislature passed it and the governor signed it.  My question is, given that your deadline is November 23, 2003, do you have any intention of imposing sanctions on industries if the Legislature passed the bill, the governor signed the bill, and it would not go into effect until January 1, 2004?  During that time period, those six weeks, do you see the EPA -- is that enough to satisfy that we’re moving in that direction, or is this a hard and fast rule?

MR. BROADBENT:  The EPA will not impose sanctions if, under the scenario as you indicated.  Should the Legislature enact a bill, the governor signs it, it’s our understanding that that’s often done in the September/October timeframe and the future effective date would be January 1st.  And you’re right, November 23rd is somewhere in the middle of that.  So, what we plan to do, and we have decided this internally, you would end up making a finding that the state Legislature and the governor’s signature would satisfy our needs ________ action to remove the sanction clock _________.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let me ask a couple more questions if I could.  Do you have a formal application approved for the farming community to comply with 

Title V permit regulations?

MR. BROADBENT:  We actually have an application already available.  It’s what’s referred to as Part 71 application.  Our concern at EPA is, that this application is rather large and rather complex, and it’s __________, and it’s really not designed for these kinds of operations.  It’s really designed for permitting of power plant on the title lands, for example.  So what we’ve been doing is, we’ve been putting together a streamlined package for the farming community use.  And we’re actually going to be sitting down with a number of representatives from the farming community later today to go over again, a potential application package.  What we’ve been struggling with is being able to put together a streamlined package but then at the same time have a package that can be determined to be a complete application, because legally that’s _____________.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Because obviously that would be my question is, how would you expect farmers to comply if they yet don’t even have the paperwork in hand, would be the logical question, I think, that would be asked.  And you’re saying that you’re going to try to pull together something, seminars, these types of things, to get our farmers up to speed on that?

MR. BROADBENT:  We plan to have about three separate workshops up and down the valley where we think _________, and also one in Imperial.  We also plan to have a great deal of outreach material available to them.  Also worked with a number of other organizations in terms of getting that application information out.  The key thing is that we really are in a situation where we don’t want to see a very complex application submitted or handed to them.  We think, when you’re talking about an industry that generally hasn’t had to submit applications to EPA before, it’s going to be rather overwhelming, and we’re fearful that might have the opposite effect.  That they just might not submit anything and put themselves at risk.  So we think we have a good balance of permit applications that we are going to be releasing next week.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you said next week?  Okay.  And the deadline for these farmers to apply for stationery diesel engine permits?

MR. BROADBENT:  May 14th of this year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  May 14th.  And so, it’s May 14th.  And you mentioned the difficulty with taking this large, you know, plan setting regs down to farmers, and I guess whether -- the simple question again is, given the applications aren’t ready yet, is it realistic to think that farmers are going to be able to meet that deadline?

MR. BROADBENT:  We think so, Senator.  We think that if we have an application out on the streets actually next week, approximately, we will provide them sufficient time.  Of course, we’re also going to put the word out pretty extensively.  __________ law is passed, we’re actually ________ actually in a position to issue a permit _______.  So what we’re going to do is take this information ____________ local districts.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So state law, let’s say SB 700 or something of that sort, would take you out of this process?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  So in other words, we wouldn’t have to deal with plant setting regs and the state might come up with something maybe more streamlined?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s your hope.  That’s our hope too, if that’s the case.  

Now in terms of the deadline, again, do we have an idea of how often this permit would have to be reviewed or renewed, excuse me?

MR. BROADBENT:  The Title V permits are reviewed every five years.  And it’s somewhat a matter of an administrative procedure that is automatic.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, that’s the EPA process, right, for permits?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct.  And actually, the local districts also use that same schedule.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The five-year.  Okay.  And in terms of that, so farmers would have to go through this process every five years?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  If the state came up with a longer timeframe, would that bother the EPA, or would not be something that you would look at?

MR. BROADBENT:  Oh, we’d certainly want to look at it and work with them.  But the Clean Air Act is rather explicit.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  No, I’m just wondering.  I just wondered.  In terms of the actual missions, if your actual missions are below the potential to admit, do farmers have to apply for a permit?

MR. BROADBENT:  We’re actually working on some guidelines as a part of the same package that speak to their actual missions.  We have found that most agricultural operations are significantly less than their potential.  They don’t operate all hours of the day, 365 days.  And we’ve actually come up with some guidelines that actually speak the uniqueness of the agricultural operations. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, and I guess that would be our concern in legislation as well, is given that, you know, we’re never going to meet the threshold, if you will, how do we, in essence, kind of try to capture some folks, but some folks maybe not?  And I guess that would be my overall question.

MR. BROADBENT:  We need to take a look at a lot of information from diesel pumps, for example, that are used on agricultural operations.  And we have found their actual emissions, there’s a number of them that would be above the threshold and be part Title V.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s talk about fines for a moment.  Does EPA ever meet with business representatives to determine some reasonable guidelines for the attainment of some of these control mandates?

MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir.  We actually, as a matter of course, we pretty regularly would.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any idea how much of a fine an individual farmer would have to pay for noncompliance?

MR. BROADBENT:  Well, the statutory maximum is $25,000 per day per violation, but that’s very rarely imposed.  What happens is, that the fine is levied against a particular source for violating Title V.  There’s also some facts that are taken into account and a fine __________ based on that set of facts.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the $25,000 a day fine is the maximum?

MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do any other industries have to face these similar types of penalties?

MR. BROADBENT:  It’s a standard number that we apply to all industries.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now, you mentioned earlier, there’s a federal new source review policy and a San Joaquin Valley new source review rule?

MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Which on would apply to farms?

MR. BROADBENT:  The San Joaquin Valley’s _____________ would apply.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess another question would be, in terms of farmers, given your statement a moment ago, when farmers crops need water, they don’t have any offsets or permit to replace the engine -- let’s just use that scenario for a moment -- can the farmer decide what engine he wants to utilize, or does the EPA decide what engine he has to buy?  I mean, who makes that decision?

MR. BROADBENT:  Well, presumably, hopefully the state law will be amended, so the EPA is not going to be in the decision making mode here.  It will be with the local district.  But, I think you’re asking, does a government agency make that decision?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MR. BROADBENT:  Actually, it’s left up to the individual owner of the engine pump, if you will.  They make that decision.  But, clearly, there’s implications here that if this law is passed; a permitting program is put in place; the farmer will need to make sure, particularly if that pump is permitted.  He will need to make sure that he replaces that pump with another diesel engine, that they go back through the permitting process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So I guess you’re saying is, that government would decide what engine that farmer has to buy.  Because you say it’s not EPA if our law goes into effect.  And if our law goes into effect, it’s still going to be the state.  So at some point the answer would be, the local air board --

MR. BROADBENT:  They’ll establish standards, thus being able to control --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s the available control standards.  Okay.  Now, given earlier comments in terms of the aggressive permit deadlines, May 14th or something of that sort, is that what we’re looking at?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s the application deadline, yes, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any thought why so aggressive, given you mentioned earlier, we have a previously exempt agricultural community, who, this is all new brand new permitting, I mean, does that seem -- April 14th seems real close.  Any thoughts on that?

MR. BROADBENT:  Right.  May 14th is right around the corner.  We understand that.  But when we put together our settlement agreement with these plaintiffs, we had to make a series of decisions.  We were facing a situation where we potentially felt the judge could impose a much more rapid standard.  A standard that actually would be one in which could be retroactive in nature.  And so we developed a schedule, all be it one that does call for current applications to be submitted rather soon.  But we thought that the farmers actually could be in a much worse situation if we had not developed this schedule.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So it was your judgment call on that.  Now, you mentioned that the settlement, and I’m wondering, prior to the settlement it was my understanding that EPA acknowledged that further study needed to be done if agricultural entities were emitting pollutants, etc., are these studies in the works to make some of these determinations, or can you give us an indication of what’s happening on that level?

MR. BROADBENT:  Right.  Ultimately what we did, is we first took an action that felt that there needed to be additional studies to estimate the emissions from agricultural operations.  The three environmental groups sued EPA on that finding.  And, we felt that we were somewhat at risk and put farmers at risk as well.  So we did alter the schedule.  Relative to those studies, there are a number of studies underway at both the headquarters _______ EPA and other places.  We have a recently released national academy of sciences study that speaks to the emissions from concentrating animal feeding operations.  But it clearly -- there needs to be a lot more development of refinement emission factors on agricultural operations.  We understand that and that effort will continue, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  This would include the Central California Ozone study?

MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s switch gears just for a moment to the poultry industry.  How are they affected by this exemption?

MR. BROADBENT:  The poultry industry would fall under the concentrating animal feeding operations, which would have to have applications submitted to EPA August 1st of this year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So August 1st is the deadline for that particular industry.  And that’s the concentrated animal feeding operations?

MR. BROADBENT:  That’s unfortunately not a term that we use.  We use K________.  It’s a term that __________ it’s because the livestock operation, dairies, poultry, we know that there’s a lot of ______________ but they all fall in that category.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And I guess the question would be, what are you doing to secure the guidelines for those particular entities so they can be compliant by the deadline date?

MR. BROADBENT:  We also are planning to use the same streamline application for them, as well as diesel pumps as well.  We’ll have to have a little bit more information about how they estimated emissions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Does that go away with SB 700, as well?

MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir, it does.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I have further questions, but let me ask you about Carl Moyer for a moment, if I could.  I believe you’re on record, or some folks are on record at EPA, saying that we’re going to try to find some funding for Carl Moyer type projects for diesel engines regulated by the feds.  And I guess my question would be, what happened to that plan, and why don’t we have some federal EPA program like this in place?

MR. BROADBENT:  We actually are very active in trying to seek those funds.  And it will take us a little bit longer, but we want to be able to provide some additional funding to be targeted towards federal sources.  The federal sources here in the San Joaquin Valley include interstate trucking.  For example, the ones coming up and down the 99 and the I-5, contribute significantly to the air quality problems.  And right now, it’s just taking some time to be able to secure the right kind of both technical assistance, plus additional financial resources.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you mentioned the kind of mobile sources and those are in our purview, right?  That’s feds and states?

MR. BROADBENT:  The interstate trucking will be part of the EPA’s responsibility, but in intrastate will be CARB.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  CARB, okay.  Any idea what the cost is going to be in terms of retrofitting or replacing some of these engines in terms of reducing emission levels?  By that I mean NOx, and particularly the emissions for stationary diesel engines.  Do we have an idea of the cost?

MR. BROADBENT:  The Carl Moyer Program’s funding that’s been provided to the San Joaquin Valley District has been very effective in reducing emissions from these sources.  And I’m going to be deferring to Dave Crow on this, but I believe they used some $29 million to retrofit some 2,100 engines.  So, it’s been very effective.  They’re very cost effective to do retrofit relative to other stationary sources.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go to the sanctions, and then I want to go to Title II, which we just talked about for a moment, and then I want to end up with just some off the record questions -- well, not off the record.  We’re on the record.  But I’d like to know about the offset controversy for a little bit in terms of your guy’s view of what we’re doing here.

Sanctions first.  You mentioned the first is sanctions to scheduled to occur 

October 22, 2003.  The second sanction, May 2, 2004.  And I guess the simple question is, what sanction will you be imposing first?


MR. BROADBENT:  Well, as I’m just trying to go back over my timeframe here, I believe the October timeframe of this year is -- well, of course, the Title V, we put it on proposal that the state law needs to be changed by November of this year, and that’s, of course, as we were indicating, should discover ____________ legislation that will, of course, make a finding that that meets our needs.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you mentioned the six weeks won’t be an issue if the governor does sign SB 700 or something of that sort.  And in terms of the May 22, 2004, we mentioned that as a deadline, the sanction that will be put on, again, are offsets, transportation, and then a whole host of other things, or is that basically the major portion of the sanctions?


MR. BROADBENT:  Senator, what I can do is, I can review our sanction clause.  Unfortunately, there’s too many.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  You mentioned quite a few of them, right?  I have them down.


MR. BROADBENT:  I believe the May 22, 2004 deadline is relative to our Title V ______ deadline.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Title V.  So not the PM-10? 


MR. BROADBENT:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not the ozone?  Just focused on Title V.  That would be pertaining to that, is the correct?


MR. BROADBENT:  Yes, Sir.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Can you tell us what happened to the city of Atlanta between the years 1998 and 2000, in terms of your actions related to sanctions?


MR. BROADBENT:  Atlanta actually had its transportation dollars withheld as a result of a conformity lapse.  And as a part of an overall planning operations there, when they basically could not develop a SIP, or a state implementation plan that EPA ______ to Atlanta, and therefore, a series of lapses occurred.  But it is an example of where EPA does take the responsibilities of the Clear Air Act very seriously.  And as I mentioned before, those sanctions are not even under EPA’s discretion.  They’re somewhat required of us to impose should ___________ issues here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And are you aware of any other regions in the country where mandatory sanctions have been imposed?


MR. BROADBENT:  There have been sanctions imposed in the Bay Area, San Francisco area.  There have actually been two-to-one offset sanctions imposed here in the valley as a result of some rule deficiencies that _______________. 


Also, in Philadelphia there’s been similar sanctions imposed.  So we can certainly _______________ information ___________ .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s move onto Title II, if we would.  We were mentioning I-5 and some of the issues there.  


In terms of Title II, what do you see on the horizon for Title II?  What’s your perspective on that?


MR. BROADBENT:  We have actually a proposed regulation that we’re going to be releasing in about a month that calls for controlling off-road sources; diesel emissions are off-road sources.  These are -- in this case, this would be construction equipment, framing operations.  It essentially takes a regulation that we have adopted at the national level and imposed on on-road sources.  On-road sources are required to have a low-sulfur content fuel by 2006, 2007 timeframe.  And then all new on-road heavy duty diesels will have to be operating with particulate traps.  We’re going to take that same type of control approach and apply it to off-road sources, and that’s the Title II regulation _____________, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The most important question to me, obviously is, if we clean up all of our stationery sources, we’ve been focusing on that Title V particularly, will mobile sources still put us out of compliance?


MR. BROADBENT:  My understanding of --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  If we do everything you want us to do and the state does everything that it’s seeking to do, I mean, at the end of the day, does Title II mobile sources put us out of compliance nonetheless; given our growth rates; given where we’re going; twenty percent growth; you name it?  I mean, are we kind of winning the battle in an essence, and then kind of losing the war?  What’s your view on that?


MR. BROADBENT:  Well, of course I didn’t’ think of it technically.  I apologize Senator.  But I think in this basin you need about another 150 tons per day ________ 150 tons per day of NOx reductions.  A lot of those NOx reductions have to come from sources that are under the regulation of both the state and the feds.  So we are on the hook.  We are committed.  We know that.  We are going to continue to be here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I can’t tell you all the calls we’re getting from classic car owners, including Jay Leno, on what we are trying to do at the state level in terms of taking some of the old cars off the road in terms of our legislative package.  So, I will say that we are working as well, and it is a very difficult thing.  But obviously, if we’re asking our agriculture industry to do something, we, at the state and the feds level, have to do our part.  And I’m just kind of wondering, the question of the day would be, if we told ag to do everything and we did all the stationary sources, do the mobile sources take us out of whack?  And do we ever kind of get there, even with what we’re doing with ag and some others?  And I know it’s a tough question.  It’s a state question.  It’s a Fed question.  But it’s something that we have to ask as well.


I mentioned, if I could divert for a moment, you can pass on these if you’d like or not.  But the issue of emission reduction credits, obviously we know, as we grow and operate in the San Joaquin Valley, we need to do that.  And I guess there some disagreement between the San Joaquin air district over the ERC’s.  My question simply would be, your view of that?  Where are we?  Where are we going?


MR. BROADBENT:  There are some ERC’s that have been -- emission reduction credits that have been established here without an issue to sources, and they speak to reductions that occur prior to 1990.  We follow pre 1990 ERC’s.  And essentially, we have raised the charts to the San Joaquin Valley District, whether these are valid.  But what we have done is that we have asked each and every source that wants to use these credits, to cite a new power plant.  For example, there is a Calvine facility in _________, we’re sitting down with those project proponents and looking at the credits themselves.  On a case by case basis, we can find that these credits are valid.  They somewhat depend on how they were created.  But there is a general overall policy that we have not wanted the use of these pre 1990 credits to be used.  But we have however, ____________ sit down and work through those issues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So there’s going to be a sit down, in essence, of some sort of workable ERC equivalent?


MR. BROADBENT:  That’s right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Because, as you probably know, it becomes a little cumbersome, you think about hospitals needing to build broilers or backup, and you kind of wonder how that happens if we haven’t kind of dealt with the ERC issue.


Mr. Broadbent, that’s about all the questions I have.  I appreciate it.  I look forward to working with you.


MR. BROADBENT:  I look forward to it as well.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Okay.  Let’s have Rob Oglesby, Cal ARB.  Thank you, Rob, for joining us.  Thank you for being at all of our hearings, I believe, pretty much, as we’ve started this process.  And I don’t know if you have a short presentation, but I do have some questions for you.  It’s really up to you.


MR. ROB OGLESBY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’m happy to be here again.  And what I’d like to do, if I could, I’ll make a very short statement on the Air Resources Board role is in this SIP process, and then I have a couple of charts that I think I’ve -- It responded to questions that your staff asked, and they basically relate to some emission trends and some source of emissions ______________ and respond to any questions you may have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’ve got it.  Thank you.


MR. OGLESBY:  Development of regional air quality strategies, attainment plans, start at the local level.  The Local Air Pollution Control District.  After these plans are approved by the local district’s boards, the ARB has the obligation to review, approve, and submit the plans to the U.S. EPA.  The ARB has three main roles in the planning process.


First, the ARB provides local districts with a wide array of scientific and technical tools that are needed to develop these emission reduction strategies.  Second, ARB also is independently responsible for a share of the emission reduction plans by implementing regulations that control vehicle emissions.  Our part of the obligation.  Three, the ARB’s final responsibility is that of overseeing and coordinating air quality planning for the state.  We are the federally authorized responsible party for reviewing, approving, and submitting the plans to the U.S. EPA.


Let me take just a couple of minutes to talk about the Air Board’s role in the current ozone planning process and the PM planning process.


And with respect to the ozone planning efforts:  Smog forming emissions draw significantly -- actually, let’s put up the first chart that shows some trends to help us illustrate where we’ve been in terms of reducing emissions from various sources and also some projections of where we’ll be under the current plans.


Smog forming emissions were up significantly during the 1990’s; about thirty percent.  But, not fast enough to meet the federal deadline of 2005.  Due to the sheer magnitude of the planning challenge required to meet the federal standard by 2005, the ARB initiated and enhanced local planning process by convening a working group with the air district and San Joaquin Valley industry to consider the most expeditious planning ______.  A decision must be made as to whether or not an attempt should be made at meeting the 2005 severe classification deadline, or to have the valley opt into a 2010 extreme classification with it’s 2010 deadline.  The San Joaquin Valley air district will vote on that extreme attainment plan decision this Fall, as we understand it.


PM planning:  The ARB has worked to bring the necessary agencies and resources to the table to write and revise a more acceptable PM plan with the U.S. EPA submittal.  Jack Broadbent, the previous witness, talked about the anticipation of receiving that plan.  The plan is needed to meet both the federal requirements, but also for public health reasons.


The ARB has been working closely with the U.S. EPA to ensure the plan will meet federal requirements, and hopefully we’ll see this plan, as Mr. Broadbent testified, and hopefully we’ll hear a little more detail from Mr. Crow very soon.


In response to some of the questions.  In interest here, I wanted to display this chart.  It essentially shows the history of emission reductions beginning about 1990, and you see that there has been substantial progress that’s been made in almost all the categories.  The area wide categories are the red line relative to _________ and that’s basically consumer activities, consumer products, and some agricultural activities which are flagged for the obvious reasons.


If I can, I’d like to have the next chart up, which is a pie chart of the ozone sources of emission as we see them today.  And as you can see now, the transportation makes up a sizeable percentage of the emissions followed by agricultural sources, and this is both off-road and all kinds of agricultural sources on that.


The traditional stationary source of emissions are characterized by the two shades of blue.  The 19 percent wedge represents your traditional area point sources that are subject to regulation.  And the petroleum wedge includes all field production, refining, and marketing operations for petroleum, which I believe --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can I ask you a question?  Why is that petroleum piece so small?  


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, I think there’s a couple of reasons.  I don’t consider that small, eight percent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well no, no.  I’m not saying that -- well, looking at the whole pie, compared to transportation, it’s miniscule.  Not miniscule, but it’s a smaller piece.  Just a simple question, Rob, why is it eight percent?


MR. OGLESBY:  In the early 90’s there was a pretty significant bite taken out of the emissions from the refining plants.  Also, this is current.  These are current emissions.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. OGLESBY:  The other area is marketing.  Petroleum marketing operations.  And there have been a couple of phases of emission controls that have taken place during the time span to bring it down.  And that includes both the distribution of petroleum products from the tanker trucks and also the big recovery systems that are at the retail level.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me take you back twenty years, thirty years.  What would that pie chart look like had there not been some changes at the regulation level for the petroleum industry?  Would it look the same?  Would it be eight percent?


MR. OGLESBY:  Nope.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s a very opinion question.  I mean, what would it look like if the minus regulation, or minus some of the things the petroleum industry had done, would that eight percent be roughly the same?


MR. OGLESBY:  It’s a hard question to answer because some of the other categories would also have been larger, and I don’t know ____________.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What would be larger be larger, and why?  Just kind of normaltively?  I know we’re going to deal in numbers, but what?


MR. OGLESBY:  It would be larger.  It would, because there have been substantial emission controls that have been put on the refinery early on.  And basically, the low-hanging _________, the easy controls have been put on some time ago when we’re looking at a twenty-year time span.  We can get you some data that shows the history of controls, but off the top of my head, to do a calculation -- because, for example, in the mobile source category, on-road, there has been huge reductions as well, and that was portrayed in the earlier chart.  We saw the _________ --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. OGLESBY:  As a percentage of the total pie, the whole pie was bigger.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  I got you.


MR. OGLESBY:  And so it’s --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I would very much appreciate you providing the committee a history of those.  And if you could, we’d like to see, even though the pie is bigger, kind of, how much the pie shrunk with those particular mandates in place?  That would be very helpful for us. 


MR. OGLESBY:  We could do that, Senator.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Go ahead.  I’m sorry.  I just wanted to ask you about that.


MR. OGLESBY:  The final chart I want to show you relates to the other air pollutants _______ deal with here in the valley.  And, in this relates to particulate matter.

And particulate matter is a much more difficult problem to portray in a pie chart because at different times of the year there are different sources that are more substantial than others.  And the weather conditions are different for the different ________.  And so, the point I would like to convey in this chart is kind of a relative comparison of the emission sources, the mean emission sources for particulate matter, and the fact that they’re different during their different times of the year.  And so this is kind of a 

typical -- the first column is the all day kind of typical fall day, and a winter day is the next column.  So you can see, it’s quite a range.  So whenever we look at control strategies to reduce these pollutants, we have to take into consideration -- you can’t just take a snapshot on one day, a summer day, a fall day, a winter day, and feel like you have a clear picture of what you should go after in order to reduce pollutants.  In point in fact, you actually have to reduce emissions from all these sources.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Got you.  If you were to take the agricultural row, which includes dust and smoke, fall 45 percent, winter five percent; any idea if we broke dust and smoke out differently, what those percentages might look like in terms of Fall and Winter?  I know those are combined, dust and smoke, but if we were to say, agriculture pollutant, dust, fall and winter, and the same category, agriculture pollutants, smoke, fall and winter, any idea how that breaks out?

MR. OGLESBY:  The dust side is heavier in the fall.  The smoke side is clearly heavier in the winter.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you get us that breakdown information wise?  That would be very helpful.  Okay.

MR. OGLESBY:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Are you?

MR. OGLESBY:  That’s it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s it.  Okay.  Thank you.  Great.  Just some layman questions which, for the committee, as you know, we are building a transcript.  I should say that for the record.  If you would like a transcript from this Senate committee, please give us a couple of weeks or two or three, to hopefully put that in place.  But we’re trying to build some, if you will, some documentation on these hearings.  And so, if anybody is reading that, what’s the difference between EPA and the California Air Resources Board?  What is it that you guys do differently?  What’s the major difference between you two?

MR. OGLESBY:  Well, we have authority over the -- the main difference is, our authority over _______ sources.  Essentially, the U.S. EPA is the oversight body, and it has authority over things like, trains, ships, airports, and we have to work within the Clean Air Act framework which they oversee.  

The Air Resources Board’s primary responsibilities are things that move around within the state; cars, trucks, and fuels that are used by those.  And then the local districts authority essentially comes out of things that relate to land use decisions, stationary sources, air resources, and things within their boundaries.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you mentioned the Clean Air Act.  And I guess if you could explain the difference between the state and federal control mandates.

MR. OGLESBY:  The state controlled mandates and the federal controlled mandates are similar in goal.  They’re both health-based standards of major criteria pollutants.  The state emission standards tend to be more stringent and we feel more health protected.  The federal mandates have some sanctions that are tied to, and with the state we tend to partner and try to get all reasonable progress.  We kind of view it as our first rule is to get to the federal levels --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now when you say the state is more stringent, are you referring to the fact that because they are more stringent than we preempt federal law.  If they were less stringent, federal law would preempt state law?  How does that preemption work in this particular case?


MR. OGLESBY:  In many areas we’ve enacted standards, emission standards, on sources that exceeds the permissible emissions that ____________.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So we can go further than federal law as long as it is --


MR. OGLESBY:  As long as we have the authority, we can do it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, it’s never -- we can just say, a blanket case that the federal government will always preempt the state, is that --


MR. OGLESBY:  No.  In fact, we have explicit authority under the federal Clean Air Act to adopt our own emission standards.  In many areas they are more stringent than the federal government.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Okay.  And in terms of the sanctions for non-compliance, are there state sanctions and federal sanctions?


MR. OGLESBY:  _______________ no.  Basically, we try to work with the districts and encourage _________ but we don’t have the same __________ .


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the state of California doing our part to help our local air district come into federal mandates, in your view, are we doing that?


MR. OGLESBY:  Yes.  I think we have different roles, and there are different feasibility in reducing emissions depending on what we’re talking about here.  I mean, if we could put the first chart back up, I think historically you can see that generally the state’s authority is the _________ cars and trucks line.  And the --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that’s the biggest part of it, right?


MR. OGLESBY:  ________ the off-road, which I -- you can see, in terms of meeting our obligation, I think we’ve had some pretty impressive ___________.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the support to industries in general, what types of resources is the Air Resource Board putting to local businesses, giving local businesses in terms of coming into compliance?


MR. OGLESBY:  Well we do have compliance assistance program.  But I think the most popular program recently that’s made a real difference has been the Carl Moyer Program which in that case ______ provide an economic incentive for extra emission reductions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now, at the federal government level they have the national agriculture compliance assistance centers which offers information support for agriculture to come in compliance with some of these regulations.  And I’m wondering, at the state level, do we have anything comparable to that?


MR. OGLESBY:  I’m not familiar enough with the federal level to say it’s comparable, but I can tell you that I know that we rely on the air district to be the primary interface with the regulated community when it comes to stationary sources.  We do have a lot of technical assistance available.  But I don’t know, I can’t really respond to that we have anything comparable to what the federal government has.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And just your opinion; you mentioned the Carl Moyer Program.  Do you believe an expansion of this program would help many of our farmers come into compliance with some of these regulations?


MR. OGLESBY:  The Carl Moyer Program would be very helpful.  It’s constrained by the amount of funding available to it.  Let me give you an example if I can.  The cost effectiveness of the Carl Moyer Program is typically $20,000 a ton of NOx fuels, which is a very economic reduction of those types of emissions.  Inclusion dollars.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Okay.  And in terms of the research that the Air Resources Board is using to determine how much pollution, what sorts of research is the air board utilizing?


MR. OGLESBY:  That’s a broad question.  I’ll try to answer it succinctly.  At the very foundation of efforts to clean the air, we maintain a very extensive and _______ monitoring system throughout the state which gives us an idea of what’s happening in the atmosphere.  We also have a research division that looks at the health effects of pollution.  Our various divisions try to keep on top of what cutting edge technology is ___ control measures in order to make sure that we’re cost effective and reasonably attained.  We generally force quite a bit of technology, but that’s based on assessment of what the industries are doing and how they’re progressing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And just from your perspective in terms of contributions by the industries to help clean the air, do you have any thought on how proactive our industries really are in terms of just meeting, going beyond meeting minimum EPA standards.  Do you have any thoughts on that?  We’re going -- really working hard, or just kind of meeting the minimum?


MR. OGLESBY:  That varies quite a bit from district to district.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I see.


MR. OGLESBY:  And clauses, because they’re different types of mechanisms that are used for industry to comply.  And what I mean specifically is, in the South Coast they have their reclaim program and in other areas it’s more command and control.  In general, it’s hard to say that industry has -- well, I’d have to look into, avoid a generalization.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But there are ways to break down how industry is doing category by category.  For example, the oil industry, the agriculture industry, there’s data out there would kind of give you some impression of that.  I know you didn’t bring it with you today, obviously, but I were to ask you to kind of come back and give us --


MR. OGLESBY:  I can come back and tell you how much progress has been made.  But as I took your question was, does industry go beyond the minimum?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, that was.  That was my question.


MR. OGLESBY:  And some industries do, and some don’t.  There are a lot of variables in it.  It also varies by industry by industry.  I can tell you why the emission category turned to technology development.  Some categories have been more progressive than others.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Rob, we’d probably like to have not a hearing, but a meeting with you and the committee staff, on just exactly what those are so we can put those into the records at some point in time.


MR. OGLESBY:  I’d be more than happy to.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any thoughts in terms of the EPA regulation for agriculture?  Are they -- do they seem enforceable, I guess would be the question I would have?  Forget the reasonable -- are they enforceable as put forth in some of the rule-making, etc.?


MR. OGLESBY: The ones that are pending?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


MR. OGLESBY:  There’s a lot that remains to be seen, so we’re waiting to review the guidelines like everyone else.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you on your side, in terms of the role of biodiesel, reducing stationary and mobile sources, do you have a thought on that over the next ten years?  Is biodiesel going to be a helpful aspect in terms of reducing some of these issues?


MR. OGLESBY:  Biodiesel’s main -- well, maybe we ought to talk about what biodiesel is.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, please.  Thank you.


MR. OGLESBY:  Biodiesel is essentially -- it’s not a diesel fuel, but it will run in a diesel engine, it’s made usually from vegetable or animal fats that are refined and treated in certain way so they can burn in an engine and remain as a liquid.  Biodiesel is a -- and is commonly referred to as biodiesel.  It refers to a broad range of fuels and all kinds of concentrations.  It can be 100 percent biodiesel.  It can be 20 percent biodiesel.  So the emissions benefit of biodiesel depends on its formulation and how it’s blended.  It’s legal in California as long as it meets our fuel standards, which it essentially would.  It’s very low in sulfur.  It’s got particulate benefits.  It sometimes has a disbenefit in NOx, which is one of the troubling pollutants.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. OGLESBY:  The main handicap to biodiesel has been that it’s expensive compared to conventional diesel.  To the extent that it is used in the marketplace to reduce particulate, there would be an air quality benefit.  But there does appear to be, in some applications, a NOx disbenefit.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of staying on that line of questioning, NAFTA, other long-term haulers, you know, the issues facing California, I guess the long haul folks that are fueling at non-CARB fuel and then travelling through California and then kind of going back again to fuel up again on the way out, I guess, would be the issue.  And I guess my concern, or my issue to you is, how do we -- what are we doing to deal with that particular aspect?


MR. OGLESBY:  I’ve looked into that, and it’s a hard nut to crack because essentially it relates to, you know -- and it’s ________ that are basically operating in California and it’s really not cost effective for them to travel out of state, fuel up and come back into state.  So we’re really talking about those long haul companies.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Right.


MR. OGLESBY:  The increment of -- the historical increment of fuel difference in price absent taxing, that’s the cost of the fuel itself, between California fuel and federal fuel ________ is about a nickel a gallon.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. OGLESBY:  So the fueling decisions out of -- it’s much better to have -- and federal government is moving towards, beginning 2006, low-sulfur fuel like we have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That’s what my question is.  They are moving in that direction then, is that right?  


Just in terms of thoughts of what you’d like to see the Legislature do in order to help the state avoiding any sanctions?  Any thoughts on that?


MR. OGLESBY:  We’re still evaluating the package of bills that have been introduced, including your ten-bill package.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. OGLESBY:  Clearly the sanctions are paramount.  The administration is aware that the sanctions ___________ .  I don’t have guidance on any specific bill at this time, but I know _____________ you know the members of the Legislature to deal with that issue.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The last question.  It’s a question I asked Mr. Broadbent.  I’ll probably ask every single witness today.  If we were to clean up all of the stationary sources, do you believe we would still be out of compliance in terms of mobile sources?  Is this going to help us if we were to really fix the stationary source side?  Are we at some point, given our population growth, etc., and travel in California, are we ever -- is the mobile source going to allow us to even --


MR. OGLESBY:  Let me give you two-part answer.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.  Okay.


MR. OGLESBY:  If there were no emissions ___________ discharge stationary sources, our progress in mobile sources alone would have us meet attainment.  Given that are going to be continued emissions in these other categories, work remains to be done.  But I -- this threshold down here, when you look at this in terms of where we need to be, we need 300 tons per day more of emission reductions.  And each one of these lines, if you added them up, would give you the emissions.  And so, where we are now in terms of -- we still need to make more progress.  That’s why we need to revisit the 2005 plan.  There’s no one source of emissions that can solve the problem.  Progress needs to be made with all the emission sources.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Rob, thank you very much.  I appreciate it.  Let’s move on, if we could, to the implementation of mandates.  We have Dave Crow and David Jones, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.  I’d like to thank 

Mr. Crow and Mr. Jones for testifying this morning.  And I think it’s important to hear about how the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District is implementing some of the mandates at the local level.  Thank you for joining us.


MR. DAVE CROW:  Thank you, Senator Florez.  It’s a pleasure to be here.  And I’d like to welcome you to Fresno and to the district offices.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


MR. CROW:  We believe from the district’s perspective that it’s very important that your committee is undertaking this task, and we appreciate your involvement.  And the public in the San Joaquin Valley really deserves the attention of the state of California and your committee’s efforts on not only to address the immediate concerns, but also in the long haul, because I think it will be abundantly clear as your hearing progress, that this is a problem that will command attention of all the parties for an extended period of time.


I have a couple of brief introductory comments I’d like to make, and then take on questions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


MR. CROW:  I think the district’s role is important to appreciate and understand, and a number of your questions have already gone to _________ authorities, federal government, and state government, and local districts of California.  The federal government, obviously, has the supreme authority, and that evolves from the federal Clean Air Act.  And you heard earlier, the federal Clean Air Act was quite explicit _______ in terms of the requirements that it proposes throughout the nation and in terms of including ambient air.  The way in which the federal government goes about that has been noted in the federal Clean Air Act.  It’s somewhat different than the state Clean Air Act.  


The federal Clean Air Act, in the vernacular, has teeth.  I wouldn’t speak to the sanctions.  They’re applicable should a district and nation fail to make attainment.  We are talking about very compelling sanctions that basically bring about an ad hoc growth moratorium on an area by virtue of suspending transportation monies, by virtue of looking at offset ratios, which are a necessity for business expansion location in an area.  So the federal government in this valley is the driving force to the federal Clean Air Act.  Mr. Broadbent did an excellent job putting that in context.


The state of California’s role is equally important.  As you just heard testimony on.  The state of California has more restrictive ambient air standards presently for both ozone, as well as PM.  And the state of California provides not only resources, but expertise to the local districts.


The state of California is actually the governor, who is ultimately responsible under the federal Clean Air Act, for the submission of a state implementation plan.  And that state implementation plan for the state of California is based on a number of ingredients.


First and foremost, it takes into consideration all of the control measures that can be brought to bear in an area.  You’ve heard of some of the pending control measures at the federal level that take place for the most part beyond the 2005 timeframe.  They’re on fuels, interstate commerce sources; trains, trucks, boats, and planes.


The state of California brings to that mosaic, if you will, their responsibilities for _______ within California, automobile tailpipe emissions, fuel formulations, ______ consumer products.

And in the construct of this hierarchy of government, the local districts of California which are about 32, have the responsibility for dealing with the stationary sources.  This is a construct, if you will, that’s been in place for quite a few years.


A number of your questions spoke to what kind of progress has been made with regard to ________ community in California, and specifically, the San Joaquin Valley.  


What I would like to share with you is that this approach is really based on a thirty years ago set of circumstances.  Thirty years ago there was smoke stack industry, and there was in fact smoke from those stacks.  Over the period of the last thirty years, a great deal of technology, at great expense, has been applied to the industrial sector and to great benefit. 


Today, in terms of the progress which has been shown on a couple of the slides, we’re pleased to say that over the last decade in the San Joaquin Valley, given our statutory authority to focus on some 7,000 plus businesses, we’ve accomplished 50 percent reductions in the ozone precursors from those businesses.  That is extremely significant given that a decade ago in Kern County to the south, the most heavily industrialized portion of this valley, was typically the dirtiest.  Today, that’s no longer the case.  Today the Fresno metropolitan area is in that position.


Now, what do we learn from that lesson?  To some 74 rules that the district has applied over the last decade, in combination with contribution from the state and the federal measures, have brought about rather dramatic improvement in the stationary sources.  And I think that is a very important note of progress to heed.


Where does that take us?


From where we stand today, where we’ve made considerable progress on both ozone and PM, we simply have not made enough progress quick enough.  We still find the valley a nonattainment status both in PM and ozone levels.  So from here forward, it’s going to be imperative that the whole partnership really line up and do exactly what your committee and colleagues are focusing on.


What specific kinds of measures can the state employ and bring to bear to benefit not only the San Joaquin Valley, but other areas throughout California?  What specifically and what timeframe can the federal government move forward with their sources of interstate commerce?  And so, that partnership, as viewed from the district’s perspective, would already regulate stationary sources and area sources.  We’ve gone about that in a couple of ways.

Over the past decade we have focused on so-called commanded patrol, if you will, or regulations.  Those regulations that are products of the planning process.  We’re going to identify strategies.  From those strategies, whether it’s an ozone or PM, we develop perspective rules for implementation.  We go through quite extensive workshop and development process with the affected industries.  That effort is ongoing and will be continue to be ongoing as additional control technology is available for those sources.


We’ve also had a good deal of success implementing voluntary incentive based programs.  A number of your questions earlier of folks testifying related to things like the Moyer Program.  Those programs have brought about tremendous benefit not only in terms of actual emission reductions that were purchased.  As Mr. Oglesby said, there are still some emission reduction on the mobile side that we can achieve $4-, $5-, $6,000 a ton, as contrasted to additional emission reductions on stationary sources that tend to run $30,000 a ton higher.  So those voluntary incentive based programs have been extremely important.

We have the resources of Moyer, which you’ve spoken to.  We would like to see those programs, at least in this valley, this critical point in time, enhanced and expanded. 

We were also the beneficiary two years ago of monies from the state of California along with the Sacramento District, which is heavily ________ dominated, to the tune of $25 million.  We were using those funds for many of the kinds of programs that you’ve heard today.  Unfortunately, given the state’s fiscal situation, it’s our understanding that the last $12.5 million of that we were unable to draw down, has been caught up in the freeze.  And I would mention that because I think that is important, to continue to have some resources available so some of these programs that farmers and citizens will avail themselves of, would be very helpful.

We also focus on public education.  While we don’t have legal authority for a lot of things, the district board over the years has really emphasized and will continue to expand that program given the resource availability.

Speaking to 3.5 million people in the valley about the choices that they make, the decisions they make in their personal lives, the decisions that 59 cities make with regard to land use and transportation planning, because there is a clear nexus between those decisions and what the consequences are on air pollution. 

There were a couple of questions that were asked earlier, and if I might, the question for perspective purposes was asked earlier as to where we stand today and what will it take?  A number of folks testified to the deficiency that exist in the San Joaquin Valley.

We have been very much engaged and very much working towards accomplishing the federal and state standards.  We have developed plans.  We have developed rules.  The area in which we have been consistently efficient is the ability to develop an attainment demonstration.

An attainment demonstration document is the results of modeling that shows not only the district’s rules and controls, but the state and the federal rules and controls as well.

And as we noted publicly last spring, we believe that we need 300 tons of daily ozone precursor emission reductions in the San Joaquin Valley to meet the federal and ambient air standards.  And at that time working with all the stakeholders, the federal EPA, the state CARB, the citizens of the valley, we were able to identify the 65 additional tons that we believe that we can get from the stationary sources.  And that is based on best available, maximum available, control technologies that we collectively were able to cite.  Well that clearly leaves us in the deficient position in terms of being able to make the payment by the federal timeframe that exists for 2005.  It’s also noteworthy that about 150 tons that’s been cited by earlier speakers, is that what we believe is available from current plans of the federal government or interstate commerce sources and from the state government with respect to their ongoing responsibilities on mobile consumer products.

What’s problematic about a lot of those future reductions is the timeframe within which they will accrue some benefit for the San Joaquin Valley.  And unfortunately, a number of federal controls on national fuel standards and national _______ specifications and so on, will confer after 2005.  And similarly so, some of the state measures.

So that led us to the discussion that you cited earlier about the board’s attainment status and should we remain at severe nonattainment for ozone, or should we voluntarily seek the downgrade to extreme nonattainment, and what all evolves from that future decision the board will make.  And it is indeed a very important issue across the issue, but it is one, as you noted, we will continue to be involved in.

Just by way of responding to an earlier question where you asked specifically in the oil reduction arena that is now cited at eight percent of ozone for ________ .  In 1990, that was a 20 percent contributor to the inventory.  So over dependency over the last decade, there has been considerable benefit derived from rule-making at the district, and from a substantial investment on behalf of these businesses in the San Joaquin Valley to get additional emission reductions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would they have done the investment without the rule-making?

MR. CROW:  I think that there’s two things that motivate there.  Obviously our rule-making is very compelling.  Secondarily, they have the ability to go beyond our rules.  And in doing so, if they make a capital investment to improve air quality, they have the means to create an emission reduction credit, which is a bankable commodity, which was spoken to briefly this morning.  And that ability for them to move ahead of our rule-making and make that investment will create that emission reduction __________.  It gives them an incentive.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me interrupt you.  Then are you saying the oil industry didn’t just do the minimum?  In other words, they just didn’t say, we’re going to -- we see the rule-making, but maybe they’re doing a little forecasting on what’s out in the future, and therefore, they made significant capital investment that would in essence, whether some future storms from EPA, the state, the air board, and therefore they’re somewhat prepared for the future.  They went beyond the minimum.  They went 

beyond -- that’s my question.

MR. CROW:  I will broaden my response to not miss the oil industry.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. CROW:  Glass manufacturers, power generators, auto body fender shops, the whole gamut.  And at the local level, we regulate everything from oil production refining, to neighborhood dry cleaning.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you regulate -- you don’t regulate ag, right?

MR. CROW:  Presently, with very limited exceptions, we do have some contact with ag through our Regulation 8.  They have also been covered under organic solvent rule.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But it’s nothing like the oil industry, is that correct?  Is it comparable?

MR. CROW:  Not to the same degree, as you’ve heard from earlier folks.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. CROW:  But I would say on balance, that all of the industry in the valley has stepped up.  We can cite for you that in the San Joaquin Valley, we have a number of the most restrictive rules in place on these sources in the country.  And so I think that speaks to how important our commitment to advance air quality through the limited statutory authority we have in this equation.  That the willingness of the industry is, to be responsible.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dave, the only reason that I ask is, that I asked Rob earlier, and that is, are we doing the minimum, or are we going out even further.  And I assume in the oil industry or in any other industry, you’re making big capital investments in order to not just meet the rule, but probably go a little further.  And you say the answer to that is absolutely, yes.

MR. CROW:  It’s an absolute emphatic yes.  And it’s belied by the fact that we are not in marginal nonattainment status.  We are in severe nonattainment status.  And when you look at the federal Clean Air Act, as your air quality designation deteriorates, you are called upon for ever more restrictive ____________ .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’ve got you.  And I guess that would probably, from your opinion, make -- I am going to use the oil industry because I live in Kern County.  But that would probably make the oil industry a little worried.  If they’ve made these huge investments, for example that you’ve mentioned, in the early 90’s, and here we find ourselves moving into 2000, 2010, and yet every ounce of capital investment they’ve made may be put at risk due to offsets, due to other things, I mean that seems to be the real game here.  And that is, was it all for not given if every player doesn’t come to the table with similar types of investments.  Would that be a correct statement?

MR. CROW:  Yes, it is.  And there’s reason for concern.  Another earlier question you asked was, and I have to preface my answer by saying there are no silver bullets in this business.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

MR. CROW:  You move __________ .  Let’s put it in the starkest of terms; if we shutdown all industrial commercial and stationary sources in this valley today, we’re still not going to meet the federal standards.  We need 300 collective tons.  So from that --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re skipping to my last question, Dave.  But go ahead.

MR. CROW:  I’ve not seen it in advance.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  All right.

MR. CROW:  But in the starkest of terms, we were confronted with the situation where, you know, to paraphrase folks from a number of years ago, it’s the mobile.  We really, really, I mean, this valley, the Pacific Rim, and the corridor from south of the border, with NAFTA opening up __________, navy _______, it’s mobile.  It is __________ rolling in the San Joaquin Valley is a target where existing authorities exist at CARB and at federal EPA.  And if you’d like, and you would indulge, I have some specific kinds of things that the feds and state ought to entertain.  Because I think one of the most important aspects __________, Senator, is setting an agenda for the future in terms of what specific kinds of things, and we all focus our collective attention on, and bring about the kind of benefit people in the valley deserve.

At the federal government, and I’m not going to elaborate any of these, but I think for purposes for putting on the table, and Jack, earlier, mentioned a few of these.  I think at the federal government looking at lower sulfur diesel fuel is important.  I know that they have plans to do that.  Again, those plans are in a timeframe that don’t help us with the 2005.  The 15 TPM sulfur fuel is very important as it relates to a state potential retrofit device on existing in future vehicles.  A support fuel cell development at the federal level.  Looking at infrastructure for alternative fuels that may have a niche for some utility in California, whether it’s CNG or LNG, or hydrogen down the line.  A fueling infrastructure is a chicken in an egg thing.  We’ve got to have the one before we can have any penetration on the vehicles.  Trains.  A great many trains supply this valley and we would like to be assured that they are going to be employing clear air technologies.  Nationwide trucks.  You may have read that there is some ______ put in place in certain engine manufacturing groups a number of years ago.  That has yet to be remedied.  And we would like to see trucks operating in California to be certified with new electronic engine management control chips that make them cleaner as they move through California.  Tax incentives and credits.  We have mentioned DRCs as one type of financial incentive for companies to move forward.  That there is a spectrum of tax credits and incentives that the feds can look at for everything from the biomass industry to the early improvement of agricultural pumps in this valley, and a number of other things that would be incentivized in that fashion.

On a paperwork thing, for years, collectively in the valley, both government and industry sources, we have sought Title V equivalency; something that would vastly reduce the table associated with the permitting process.  And there are particular gentleman or two in the audience here who can speak to that.  But I mean, we would like to see the federal government be more responsible.  And we, in California, that have a very long history in air pollution, have something that they can look at. 

Cap A standards.  The corporate average fuel efficiency standards at the federal level for light trucks, SUVs.  Just last winter they had an opportunity there that didn’t materialize.

There’s quite a few things that I would suggest that as we go about this endeavor, we focus on specifics and get it down to a level where certain tangible things could be addressed.  

On the state side.  As your committee moves forward, CARB representatives, as well as some others, again, fuels.  Low-sulfur fuels.  They’re available from the refineries.  They’re utilization to some extent __________.  

I’ve also mentioned the Smog Check Program.  After a decade, we’re successful now in having most metropolitan areas in California covered by the Smog Check Program.  We’re all stakeholders in Southern California, the Bay Area, and the San Joaquin.  

We would suggest that CARB be asked to do what they’re very good at, and that’s supply their technical acumen to how they might make further improvements in the existing Smog Check Program?

Heavy duty vehicles.  Those that are on the roads presently, they do have ________ standards for exhaust.  We understand there’s a very limited means at the state level for enforcement of that.  Perhaps that kind of effort could be expanded.

So, I would suggest that as we collectively move forward we look at certain specific things.  I know that the state is limited in its financial resources now.  That things like Moyer, things like the release of the monies that were made available to this district and Sacramento, it’s already been legislated that that was desirable.  So it’s not as if we’re asking for anything new.  It’s just unshackle it and make it available to us.

Vehicle registrations in California.  That’s a topical issue that I think the Legislature ought to take a look at and make sure that all the cars are operating in California and in the valley are subject to the same controls that their neighbors are.

I guess the most significant thing I would try to emphasize is the partnership.  There’s a hierarchy of governments involved; federal, state, and local districts, and then there are 3.5 million citizens.  So what collectively can each of us pursue that would bring about quick improvements?

And it’s also important to note that sometimes there are deadlines as applicable through the district as stated, where there are deadlines.  And for some reasons certain things slide.  And, now that’s unacceptable given the severity of the problem in California.  The feds need to stay on time.  The state, I would mention, retrofit the prices, as an example of something that needs to move along at a quicker pace.

I would conclude my introductory comments, but I’m sure you probably have questions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  A couple of pages.  But you’ve answered about -- I’m marking them off as you answered them, Dave.  Let’s get to the issues of permits, if I could.  A question, why does it take so long to issue air permits?  And I think we heard the feds tell us, and quite frankly tell us, that they believe probably at our level, it would be a quicker and faster process.  And I appreciate that candid view of it.  But if you talk to the business folks that we talked to, it’s a long process.  And I guess if we’re going to move to that type of thing, particularly under Title V, you know, the question has to be asked, how would this process work better from your vantage point?

MR. CROW:  It’s a very good question.  Presently, our permitting staff has a process that may take four months or longer to issue on a complex permit.  That’s generally been the backlog for permitting activity that we’ve had.  And given the first permit is often _________ stationary source needs, that generally will work into their planning horizons for development.  There’s oftentimes that it won’t, and they need that permit in hand sooner.  We have a means available to them to expedite that permit where they pay for some overtime assistance by our staff.  The reason that it is that long is one of resources.  We have engineering staff on board to issue those permits.  We have tried to be fair in the permit fees.  Sometimes it’s very difficult for us to even recruit and hire engineers.  It now happens to be a time where we’re almost fully staffed.  There’s been times when the state and others have gone on a hiring spree and it’s been difficult for us to keep engineers in place.  And so part of it is resource driven, and part of it is, we’re trying to accommodate.  And in many cases that timeframe is workable.

I would offer a real caution, that as we move into severe level permitting at 25 tons of threshold, this is notwithstanding anything that you and your colleagues may do with regard to ag.  We’ve already talked to the board about adding six additional engineering positions so that we can keep pace with that  ____________ responsibility as we move to extreme in permitting threshold major sources of close to 10 tons.  That will put another resource demand on the district, as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How would the staffing issue that you’ve mentioned moving into extreme or even now compared to staff resources that would say, at the South Coast Air Quality Board, what is it?  Do they have more staff?  More folks in those categories that you’ve mentioned?  I know it’s a bigger area.

MR. CROW:  Indeed.  They have more staff.  They also, as was mentioned by an earlier party, they are operating under a reclaim process.  But they have more staff.  They also probably charge a different fee structure than we do.  One of the things that we’re very proud of is, that when we side by side productivity comparisons to the other multi-county districts, we’re very efficient in terms of our productivity.  You can note that we’ve applied technology to the fullest extent in this district.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess my question to be simply with more people, is it necessarily a positive?  And I understand a productivity comparison, and those are all great, but if somebody really wants to shut down or modify a piece of equipment that will really truly reduce emissions and yet it takes four months to do exactly what we want them to do and that is -- you know I’m wondering, because the permitting process, I wonder if we’re slowing it down in essence.  If somebody wants to say, I have this new piece of equipment.  It’s going to be much more friendlier if you’re willing to hear.  But I can’t even get that approved because of the permitting process.  And then we’re kind of defeating the process.  So I guess I’m asking, from a state perspective, what it is that we need to do in order to make that more efficient?

MR. CROW:  The state has some oversight responsibilities, as was noted.  And the state is coming in to do a performance management audit, if you will, of the district.  And we have not had one of those since 1992, when I last requested one.  So we’re hopeful that as the state goes through and takes a look at our permitting programs, or compliance programs, there may be some suggestions there.  A lot of it we know is resource driven.  A lot of it -- part of our productivity is, we have been pretty inventive in terms of creating templates and streamline systems for doing this.  But we are going to have the input of CARB in that process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But you have looked and reviewed your permitting process and evaluated areas to be improved or streamlined?

MR. CROW:  Yes.  That’s an ongoing task, and again, we’ll benefit from an outside perspective.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And, have you worked with the regulated community in that process so they might have some better suggestions in terms of how that might work?

MR. CROW:  I would say, yes, that we have.  We’ve also worked with the regulated community and those that serve as consultants to them with specific programs where through some training and certification we have outside engineers that can do front end work, if you will, with the permitting process.  So, you know, I think, yes, we definitely work with them.  Is there more that we can do?  And are there things and times when the system doesn’t work as optimally as we’d like it too?  The answer would be, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And obviously you mentioned, next fall is the target date for the board to make some decision on the extreme category.  And I guess my question would be, if we move to that and it is adopted, is there some accountability measures being built into that so we actually know whether or not the plan is working or not?

MR. CROW:  Absolutely.  And again, the bottom line, if you will, as extreme plans develop, is what does the attainment demonstration modeling efforts show?  Does it show that by 2010 in that case, that the aggregate emission reductions from the district, from the state and federal government, will meet that 300 ton per day figure that we cited earlier?  And the feds will not accept that plan if we are not able to collectively show that payment demonstration.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s move, if I could, to the issue of ag burning.  From your vantage point, do you feel that the elimination of open field ag burning will significantly improve the air quality in the Central Valley?

MR. CROW:  Backing up one bit, because I get -- presently, the local districts in California cannot ban agricultural burning.  We can regulate it to a degree.  In the traditional way in which that’s been done was a burn day, a no burn day call.  Many years ago --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dave, tell us what you’ve done on that then, and then we’ll get to the question.  You’re probably getting there.

MR. CROW:  That burn/no burn day scenario, agriculture, the district, public understands.  That’s no longer the most workable strategy.  A number of years ago the district board directed us to develop a smoke management program.  And we are moving, and have been for a number of years, hoping to bring that program online this fall.  The smoke management program, again, it’s not a prohibition or a ban, it’s a management of agricultural material.  We have now, atmospheric modeling capability that we didn’t have before and we can divide the valley into about 90 areas of ________.  We have the technology in terms of integrating _______ the internet with models to say that on a given day in a given area throughout the valley the farmers call in to identify the amount of material ________ location and so we can say, you can burn.  Because in that scenario, the smoke impasse would be mitigated and they will have minimal impact on folks.  And we can cut that off when it reaches saturation.

So we’ve made a substantial investment working with all the stakeholders to bring about a smoke management program.  And we think that that is going to allow the use of agricultural burning when it’s needed if there’s disease in the field, for example.

We also, the board has had a longstanding commitment in working with the biomass industry in the San Joaquin Valley, and there’s fewer and fewer we’re working with today than we were years ago.  But in order to curtail agricultural burning, there needs to be some remedies for it.  And the biomass industry could represent the potential outlet for a lot of that material.  Therefore it needs to be done.  I know you have a bill on that topical area. 

In terms of your specific question.  Smoke from ag burning occurs in certain seasons of the year.  Its impacts tend to be localized.  They’re profoundly important if you’re in the vicinity and the smoke does not behave in the way that we have anticipated it would.

We know that grower organizations are moving forward to identify curtailments, if you would, that they would accept on their own.  We know the valley has a long history of that.  The Kern County project Clear Air, about a decade ago, moved aggressively and worked with farmers and they had commitments to do no ag burning to cover about 800,000 acres of the south land.  So that we know that growers are very mindful of the impacts of that ag burning and that they’re working make reductions.

So I would say, as you go through your efforts in that particular bill that you’ve introduced, the stakeholder input on that will be indispensable to coming to a 

reasonable --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  No doubt.  And that bill, obviously, is subject to those discussions and whether or not it transpires.

In terms of the ag burning issue, biomass you’ve mentioned -- and, obviously, you’ve worked with, and they’re declining.  And we have a bill dealing with biomass facilities in general, trying to open up capacity for farmers so that in the event that farmers need to take prunings, etc., to those areas -- I guess my question is, do you have any sort of control over these biomass facilities?  These are just -- how do you -- when you say you work with them; you call them; and you ask them; you talk to them; you meet with them.

MR. CROW:  You share control, Senator.  At the local level we permit them as combustion devices, if you will.  Most of them have been permitted many years ago.  They were created under federal incentives for _______ energy supply.  So many of those have been permitted.  If ones are to start up, we have permit discussions.  Obviously, we must permit them.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there a certain ownership structure for these biomass plants?  Do you look at; I know you kind of look at what they do, but it kind of seems like -- I kind of call them, L.A. construction co-ops now.  I mean, they are taking a huge amount of material from Los Angeles.  The ownership seems to be changing a bit.  Do you look at the ownership aspects of the biomass facilities and who’s really in control of these?

MR. CROW:  Change of ownership prompts a review.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It does, huh?

MR. CROW:  And you’re correct.  That some of these transportation material come from outside of the valley.  And that’s a good topic for the state to engage in, because what they’re doing is, diverting materials from landfills where they have restrictions of landfill material.  The other is, the overarching economic considerations associated with those plants.  And as you went through the energy issues over the past couple of years, those plants have been regarded traditionally as energy providers.  They don’t compete very well in providing electrical power.  They do have some value clearly as means of reducing open field burning as an alternative to _______ and tree pruning for example.  Their economics are going to have to be assessed to work out to a finer edge than they have been presently.  Or we’re probably -- I think we’ve gone through some thirteen biomass facilities about a decade.  We’re down to about three or four today.  And it’s really about the money and the economics of their operation.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Got you.  But in the thought processes, let’s use Dinuba or Delano.  You know, the city of Delano is now, given the energy crisis, seeking to find their own sources of energy and they would like to in essence, buy or be a part of the biomass facility in order to provide energy that might be the equivalent of what -- you know, have some cost savings actually for them.  And it actually might be something positive for the biomass facility, or even if the city owned it.  You know, we’re looking at those types of structures because obviously the economics of it, or the other portion of it, that we have, have to be viable.  And obviously from the state’s perspective, you know, the governor put in a drop of money for these biomass facilities, and we’re concerned that as we put $4 million back in the budget, and I think we probably will do that this given year even with the budget crisis, that if you’re going to take state money, you also have a responsibility to have some capacity reserved, if you will, for where we’re trying to clean the air up, and particularly for some of our farmers.  And I think that’s the hook, if you will, on the private sector.  If you take state money, you ought to also have some -- any thought on that?

MR. CROW:  Absolutely.  If you’re giving money, you have the ability to set some rules.  And, as you noted, the governor previously allocated $50 million for biomass plants.  One of the things that we _________ and thought was appropriate was the __________ with receipt of that money _____ also developed strategic plans to show after that $50 million was gone, they would be economically liable and be able to stand alone.

So, I think that’s a totally legitimate important role of the state to look at, the vitality of that business and a role that it can play as an alternative to burning, whether it’s landfill diversion from southern California, or agricultural residue --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just two other questions.  Since you answered my last question already, Dave, in terms of what we’re going to do in terms of mobile sources.  But, many of our farmers and some personal friends of mine, who are converted from electricity to diesel engines for their water pumping over the last 15 years, many of them have done so in an efficient way and I guess my question is, what’s the number one cause for that migration from your perspective?  I mean, from energy, from electricity to diesel, and now many of them going -- wanting to go back to electricity but somehow -- do you have any thoughts on what the state might do?

MR. CROW:  Well I think what’s driven that is cost.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. CROW:  And I think that electricity has been a volatile commodity in California in terms of its pricing.  And I think that there is presently in the grower, using that example, operated in engines less than full time or less than 70 percent of the time _____ figure there are so-called standby charges that are paid to the ______ distributor for the benefit of having power to the engine.  And that’s been cited to us, and we’re not really expert --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MR. CROW:  It’s been cited to us as one of the considerations in our cost should they operate with electricity or diesel.  So I think clearly the state could better explore that issue as it’s been stated preliminarily and see if there isn’t that could be done there to give the farmer a choice in how to power his irrigation pumps.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  I think one of our bills, which is Senate Bill 703, is exactly that in terms of trying to find some 10-year electricity rate contract, or try to find some fixed charge.  Something that will allow us to operate more efficiently.  And I do know this is an old debate, but I think our argument would be, and I don’t know if you agree with it or the residents will agree with it, but, you know, if we’re going to continue to have the battles, the political battles with the utilities and continue to lose those in Sacramento based on the fact that nobody wants to lift rates, I would think that the people in the valley who want to see cleaner air, also need to pay for it spread across, not just industry.  So we have to kind of figure out a better funding source that’s not just industry, and it’s just not even, in many cases, our utilities.  That we kind of look at the charge that we have, the surcharge, and try to figure a better way to allocate that.  So we’ll definitely need your help on that bill as this thing moves forward.

MR. CROW:  There’s a collateral issue on that too.  And there should be a symbiosis between agriculture and biomass, for example.  And the people that are capturing volatile gases off the confined animal operations.  Another thing I would suggest you look at is, the ability of people to sell energy that they produced to the grid, will not be able to sell that energy to the grid again.  It would seem that there maybe some opportunities to look at reciprocity.  If growers make materials available to biomass, I mean, ___________ .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much, Mr. Crow.

MR. CROW:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s move on if we could.  We’re going to now talk about the cost of missing, again, the effects on businesses.  We have David Farabee, from Pillsbury Winthrop.  Dave, thank you for joining us.  Very much appreciate it. 

MR. DAVID FARABEE:  Thank you, Senator.  Good morning.  Again, my name is David Farabee.  I’m here today representing the San Joaquin Valley Air Quality Coalition.  And it’s a coalition of industry groups that include, the Manufacturers Council to the Central Valley, the Building Industry Association of the San Joaquin Valley, ________ Farmers League, Western States Petroleum Association, Independent Oil Producers Agency, California Independent Petroleum Association, the California Chamber of Commerce, the California Manufacturing Technology Association, and the Greater Bakersfield Chamber of Commerce.  So as you can see, we have quite a diverse membership.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Right.

MR. FARABEE:  You’ve heard a number of different issues raised this morning, particularly by Mr. Broadbent, who I think gave quite a thorough overview of the various valley air issues.

This morning, I’d like to focus on one particular issue in my remarks, and that’s the question of ozone and the distinction between the severe ozone concentration and moving onto extreme.

Let me just preface this by saying, I want to make a few key points _________ and then I’ll come back to my remarks.

The first is that emissions have continued to decrease.  I think you heard that one from several previous witnesses.  And air quality has actually improved.  Implementation of the air quality measures that are out there will continue.  And as you heard from the district representative, Mr. Crow, the district is continuing its efforts to further reduce emissions.

It’s not possible for the valley to make the November 2005 ozone attainment deadline ______ classification.  And I’m not sure there’s anyone out there who disagrees with that.  Certainly not from the agencies that I’ve heard.  However, if we maintain existing severe classification, the impacts on the economy from the sanctions that are imposed will be extreme.  So, our industry coalition ______ has come to the conclusion rather reluctantly, that despite the negative implications that an extreme classification, that’s the way we’re going to go. 

So let me just present a little bit of background about what the classifications mean; how they came to be.

When Congress amended the federal Clean Air Act in 1990, it established this classification scheme.  Prior to that we simply had a system whereby areas were either attainment or nonattainment.  There were requirements as the so-called one-size-fits-all program.  You implemented those and you attained your _______ .

In 1990, Congress followed a model that had been adopted, actually, in California in the California Clean Air Act, where there is this hierarchy of classifications ranging from marginal with the air quality closest to attaining the standard, all the way up to extreme.

It’s important to note that after that time the classifications were based on existing air quality.  So, if immediately after the 1990 amendments you were a marginal nonattainment area because your air quality was right on the border of the _____ standard.  If you were extreme, the south coast, the Los Angeles area, was the only extreme area in the country because they were the farthest away from the standard.  As time goes by, if you don’t attain the standard by the deadline applicable to your particular classification, then your classification changes, even though your air quality may have improved or stayed roughly the same.  So now we’re roughly thirteen years after the 1990 amendments were enacted by Congress, and air quality according to a quote from 

Mr. Crow, “We’ve had no worthy improvements in air quality in the valley.  But because of the passage of time and the inability to actually attain the standards, the classification under the federal act has to change.”  

So at this point in time it doesn’t reflect a worsening of air quality, just the fact that the federal scheme requires that the classification change in order to impose a more stringent requirement.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And tell me why that is again, because that seems very counter intuitive.  If our air has gotten better, which you’re telling me, why is our --

MR. FARABEE:  The classification change is simply because Congress made a policy decision that if you didn’t attain the standard by the pertinent deadline, then the more stringent minimum requirements of the next worse classification should apply to you.  So the federal minimum becomes more stringent.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So if you didn’t meet the goal that they gave us, then your classification would change.

MR. FARABEE:  It would change.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So then you’re telling me that our air has gotten cleaner but we didn’t meet the goal.

MR. FARABEE:  That’s exactly right.  And Mr. Broadbent really made that -

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But the goal was a very, very clean air standard, right?

MR. FARABEE:  Right.  That’s exactly right.  And that goal has not changed.  Mr. Broadbent made the point earlier that the district’s classification, which originally was serious, has already been changed downgraded, upgraded, whatever you want to call it, to severe.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

MR. FARABEE:  And that again was by operation of law the way the Clean Air Act works.  And it as Mr. Crow, I believe, pointed out that change, the major source threshold down to 25 tons, brings smaller sources into the program.  Those are the sorts of impacts that occurred as the classification changes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I see.

MR. FARABEE:  Let’s talk a little bit about what’s going on.  I have a few slides.  You should have copies ______________ .

Starting with the -- and these are copied out of the California Air Resources Board’s 2002 Air Quality Almanac -- starting with the first page, this chart shows the trends, population, and vehicle miles traveled on the right.  Since 1981, the population has increased 56 percent, and vehicle miles traveled 140 percent, that’s the highest in the state.

If you flip to the second slide, notwithstanding those trends, _________ ozone trend just of the San Joaquin Valley.  There’s been a slight -- overall it looks like it’s holding fairly steady, but actually on a numerical basis, the peaks have gone down about 14 percent during that same time period.  And more importantly, in days on which an exceedence occurs, in other words, a day when the standards are violated, they’ve gone down about 50 percent.  And again, based on state information.

Let’s flip to the next page.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What has gone down again?

MR. FARABEE:  The number of violation days.  The number of exceedence days.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what standard is that?

MR. FARABEE:  That’s for the federal standard.  It’s .12.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  .12.  And that’s gone down?

MR. FARABEE:  The standards.  But the number of days on which the standard has been violated has not been.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. FARABEE:  This next chart, unfortunately, is not in graph form --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m sorry.  And that standard was the one-hour standard?

MR. FARABEE:  It’s the federal standard one-hour standard.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is there a new standard like an eight hour, a week thing?  How are we doing with that?


MR. FARABEE:  There is a new --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m sorry.  I didn’t see it on this, but I just kind of wondered.


MR. FARABEE:  No.  Right.  This chart just deals with the federal one-hour.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dave, can you explain that so I can understand what that is?


MR. CROW:  There is a new federal standard that’s been promulgated.  An eight-hour average goes on the standard, as well as a new PM standard of ___.25.  And during the year 2003, the federal EPA will be going -- looking at the data nationwide to determine the classification of each region to those new standards.  They are indeed more restrictive than the present ones.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how are we doing with that standard?


MR. CROW:  We are not doing very well since we’re struggling with the existing one-hour standard --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is the one-hour standard ever even going to be the standard anymore pretty soon?


MR. CROW:  That’s a question better posed to Mr. Broadbent.  There’s an ongoing discussion at the federal level as to what will become of the one-hour ozone standard when the eight-hour average standard --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m just trying to figure out the significance of this standard.  But, okay.  Thank you.  Go ahead.


MR. FARABEE:  Thank you.  Just to respond to that last question.  Part of the significance is that at least until the U.S. EPA changes its implementation approach, we are obligated to meet the federal standards.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I got it.


MR. FARABEE:  I want to skip over this part.  It’s numbers instead of a nice graph, but basically it shows the trends in ozone precursor emissions in the valley and how they’ve gone down in air resource category since 1975. 


One of the questions you asked earlier was about the decrease in the emissions from petroleum sources.  I will deal with that specifically, as did Mr. Crow.


But since 1987 to 2000, in 1987, petroleum sources composed roughly 34 percent of total ozone precursor inventory and that’s down as it was noted to eight percent as of the year 2000. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And why is that?


MR. FARABEE:  The word that Mr. Crow told me he’d use in his testimony and didn’t is, that those sources have been hammered by the district.  They are subject to extremely stringent emission controls.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I think the word was rule-making, right?


MR. FARABEE:  Well, it’s rule-making.  Hammered ______ rule-making.  But it’s also important to note that the rule-makings are a cooperative effort.  That the district doesn’t simply sit in the dark room back in the office building here and say, this is --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Has industry agreed with everything that Dave Crow put on the table and said, let’s go for it?


MR. FARABEE:  The industry was at the table.  We met with district staff.  We worked with them to come up with standards that were workable.  And it left room to achieve more so that we could, in fact, get the excess emission reductions and be able to get emission reduction credit which are necessary to grow.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Got you.  Okay.


MR. FARABEE:  Moving onto the next slide.  It simply takes those numbers and puts them into bar chart form so that you can graphically see how dramatically ozone ______ emission have dropped over the last, roughly, 25 years.


This is again, the San Joaquin Valley specific chart and it’s broken out by source category.  If you look at the reactive organic gas chart, which is on the right, you’ll note that the lines particularly for stationary sources have gone down pretty remarkable in terms of organic emissions.  Again, this is ________ district regulations and industry efforts to reduce those emissions.


Just by way of showing it a little bit ________ the last two charts unfortunately are not San Joaquin Valley specific.  They’re statewide emission trend charts that show the same trends for the entire state of California.  The valley is roughly consistent with those, but it shows how every source category has reduced emissions, but there’s still a fair amount to do.


One of the key points to get from these various charts, and certainly from the stationary source perspective is, that only about 40 percent of the overall emissions inventory at this point is stationary sources.  And the flip side of that is that something on the order of 60 percent of the emissions inventory from sources that the valley district cannot control.  That means it has to be the Air Resources Board or U.S. EPA.  And, in fact, the U.S. EPA controls at least 10 percent of the overall inventory.  So they have to be in accordance there in making this happen.


I’d like to focus specifically on the cost and the impacts of the current ozone classification and current deadline.  We have this lovely colorful timeline here.  Where I’d like to start is on the bottom.  


The bottom line represents the so-called no bump up scenario.  What happens if we stay in the current path under the severe classification and have to meet the federal demand of 2005 attainment deadline?  As has been noted back in this past September, EPA Region 9 made the finding that the district had failed to submit all of the required elements of the severe SIP, and in particular, the reasonable further progress attainment demonstrations.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  David, can I interrupt you?  Do you have a hard copy of that that I could look at?


MR. FARABEE:  It’s in front of you.  You should have one.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  I just have your slide show.


MR. FARABEE:  We gave those to the sergeant.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Really.  Do we have those or not?  I don’t think we have those.  We do have the one slides that were just presented.  Yes, those are the ones.  It’s very had to see on the screens.  I’m sorry.  Thank you.  Okay.  Go ahead.


MR. FARABEE:  Thank you.  In the interest of time I’ll try to move through this quickly.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  Take your time.  That’s fine.


MR. FARABEE:  Back to the bottom line.  As you’ll note in the blue bars, we have started, both the 18-month and 24-month sanction ________.  The two-to-one offset sanction in roughly in March 2004, and again, that hit stationary sources.  Irrespective of the sources problem, it affects stationary sources.  And anyone who proposes to put in a new major source or modify a major source instead of providing let’s say 1.2 or .25 two-to-one offsets, all of a sudden you have to basically double the amount of offsets.  And our principal concern here is, that it’s already extremely difficult to provide offsets in the valley for a variety of reasons.  And if you have a situation where you now have to provide twice as many offsets as your new emissions, our perspective is that likely to simply stop economic growth, those sorts of sources.  So it’s a pretty dramatic sanction.


Six months later, the highway funding sanction hits.  And in the valley we’re talking roughly $2 billion of federal highway funding.  So again, that’s very significant.  And it’s not just that those dollars dry up, but all of the jobs, all of the multiplier effect that results from having that money come into the valley, that all evaporates when the highway funding sanction hits.  


And then finally, there’s also the obligation that the EPA promulgates the so-called FIP, or Federal Implementation Plan.  The FIP that they proposed for the Los Angeles area some years ago had originally some incredible draconian measures, including no drive days and a number of restrictions on individual activities.  I have no idea what they would propose to do now were that to come to pass, but based on history it’s not something to look forward to.


Then there’s the 2005 attainment deadline.  And presumably some time within about six months after that date that the valley had not attained this, which we don’t expect it to do, the EPA is obligated under the federal act, to make a finding of failure to attain, which for a severe ozone nonattainment area it immediately institutes a $5,000 per ton emission fee.  Again, the idea being that you impose fees in order to avoid the fee you could admit, but that would have significant economic impact.  And our estimate is that the emission fee will cost valley businesses on the order of $6 million per year.  Something in that neighborhood.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  When you say valley businesses, it’s always a term I read about in our newspapers, what does that mean?  Who are the valley businesses?


MR. FARABEE:  Who are the valley businesses?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Who are they?


MR. FARABEE:  In this case, this is the businesses that are so-called major sources.  They have emissions of --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are these the 7,000 that --


MR. FARABEE:  Pardon?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are these the 7,000 that the air board oversees?


MR. FARABEE:  The district permitted sources.  It’s manufacturing facilities.  It’s oil production.  It’s basically any significant business -- if you bring in ag sources it would also include the agricultural sources in the funding program.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And part of who you represent, you mentioned the Chamber of Commerce?


MR. FARABEE:  Right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And they’re aware that all of these affect them as well?


MR. FARABEE:  They’re aware that this affects them.  And in fact, that’s why they’re part of the coalition and why the coalition as a whole agrees that extreme is the way to go because --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is everyone in the coalition regulated?


MR. FARABEE:  Not everyone in the coalition is.  In fact, the Chamber of Commerce --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who is not regulated?


MR. FARABEE:  Pardon?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who is not regulated in this?


MR. FARABEE:  The smaller members of the Chamber of Commerce.  You have various businesses, small print shops, various other sources of organizations --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do people in this coalition sit around sometimes in the meeting and go, gosh, we’re regulated.  You’re not.  Do your part.


MR. FARABEE:  (laughter)


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I mean, I’m just wondering.  This is a very serious question.  I mean, you represent a broad coalition of folks who are all, in many cases, I’ll use the oil industry again, made substantial investments years ago under a rule-making, or what you call,  a hammer, or cooperative efforts, whatever you want to term it, and they all sat around and said, okay, we’ve got to make these major changes because these rules are coming forward.  And you’ve got members of your coalition who are exempt.  Then you’ve got members of your coalition who, like small print companies and what you mentioned, what not, and they’re not participating.  I’m just wondering, you’re kind of talking about all these folks.  Do these folks ever kind of go, will you just get permitted and help all of us so we don’t lose the investment that we made because we’re permitted?  I mean, just how does that work?  I mean, how do you do that?


MR. FARABEE:  In fact, the consensus is, that everybody has to do their share, not just the members of the coalition --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how do they do that?  And how do they do that?


MR. FARABEE:  They do that by -- if they have major sources, by putting on the controls and working with the district to develop _____________ beyond _________


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  Keep going.  Sorry.


MR. FARABEE:  Okay.  We were _______ at the bottom _______ .  The alternative is for the district to voluntarily request reclassification to extreme for ozone.  And under the federal act it says, “EPA shall approve that request.”  So if the district asks, the EPA has to approve it.


Again, the important thing to note here is this bold text and blue arrow right under the “extreme line.”  The existing emission control strategy continues.  There’s no delay in implementation of any measure simply by requesting the extreme classification.  The concept here is twofold.  It’s principally, avoid the imposition of those extremely onerous sanctions by U.S. EPA, and the negative economic impact that they have.  The second is, provide sufficient time by extending the ozone attainment deadline to 2010 for some of the existing measures to take effect.  The best example there is that the state’s mobile source program was principally designed to help achieve sufficient reductions to get the Los Angeles basin into attainment by its 2010 deadline.  Well those are really rolling into place through beautiful turnover, _______ turnover over the next five or six years.  And we need those reductions for the valley too.  We don’t get any kind of credit for those in that timeframe unless we can extend the attainment deadline.  Those are the source reductions that are going to happen anyway under the current regulatory scheme, as are _____ requirements on the major sources.  And we also need to give the district time to plan and develop an attainment strategy used in the Central California ozone study results, develop new technologies and go out there and do everything we can to meet those health-based standards.


That’s really the end of my prepared remarks.  I want to thank you again for the opportunity to speak this morning.  We do appreciate your leadership and efforts on these issues, and, particularly, the help the valley as they attain the various health-based standards and have a regulatory system that makes sense.  It’s important to us that all of these efforts be coordinated.  One of our principal concerns is not having duplicative state, federal, and local programs.  And certainly others that the witnesses have spoken to that point of _______ community __________ appreciate your efforts in that regard.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are you wary of the federal government being involved in this solely in terms of permitting?


MR. FARABEE:  We’re wary to the extent there’s duplication.  We have worked with the EPA _________ this project for quite some time.  And we have found that within the structure provided by the federal act, that particularly Region 9 is willing to work with folks and attempt to do the right thing.  Unfortunately, the federal act doesn’t always give us the flexibility, so it’s important to us to do two things.  One is, to avoid the triggers that bring in direct federal involvement, such as the FIP.  And second, is to take full advantage of what opportunities there are to work with the region to determine the state and local programs are equivalent, or otherwise meets the standards of the federal government without having a duplicative layer of permits, regulations, what have you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thank you very much.


MR. FARABEE:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Can we have Dave Spaur, President and CEO of the Economic Development Corporation of Fresno County.  


(Senator announced a three-minute break)


SENATOR FLOREZ:  _____________ the Economic Development Corporation of Fresno County.  Thank you for joining us.


MR. DAVE SPAUR:  Thank you, Senator.  As a current board member of the International Economic Development Council, past board member of the California Association of Local Economic Development, and a current member of the California Central Valley Economic Development Corporation, I’m here to talk to you on some economic development effects, business effects, particularly as it relates to the San Joaquin Valley.  And I’d like to say that the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District has been extremely firm, but I also believe, very fair in dealing with business and industry.  


The focus seems to drift away from incentives and more and more towards penalties, and more and more towards regulation versus creative solutions and bringing people together in partnerships to analyze all the solutions first.  And if we’re to look at agriculture right now, I don’t think now is the time to penalize agriculture and ride them into the rules as a polluter.


Stationary sources, we have several stationary sources in the Central Valley.  We recruit stationary sources.  We do business recruitment up and down the Central Valley from Kern County to San Joaquin County, principally in warehouse distribution because of the NAFTA corridor, I-5/99 corridor running through Mexico to Canada.  We’re very successful.  We have an invisionous industry here based on agriculture which has helped us move from farm to market through truck and rail, and so it makes us a very good market for distribution warehouse services.


We also export 75 percent of our products; 275 commodities from the Central Valley out of the markets.  And I see that this NAFTA corridor is not a state issue and that we ought not be looking at more regulations in the state of California, more regulations for the Central Valley. 


But the mobile source on automobiles and trucks really is a national issue.  We have not had enough attention as controls from the EPA, nationally, that would help our competitors; the Dallas/Fort Worth area, the San Antonio, the Austin, Albuquerque, Phoenix, and Las Vegas.  But it would prevent those companies that are now locating up to the border and Phoenix and Las Vegas from shipping into California because they believe California is a hostile business environment.  We too believe that California is a hostile business environment, and now is the time to focus on business retention to retain California businesses.


And, I’m here to assist you, Senator, in this hearing, answering any questions you may have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I have a couple.  In terms of retention, in your website you talk about planning a series of recruitment missions to the Bay Area and Los Angeles to entice companies to move to Fresno County, and I guess my question would be, if we don’t take some very bold actions on this issue, how are you going to impress upon those companies that they ought to come to Fresno County, moving into an extreme air district?  I mean, what’s your marketing pitch?


MR. SPAUR:  It’s a two prong pitch; national recruitment, bringing companies in that have to serve the California market, or else, distributors, suppliers, and service companies that know that California is growing.  They have to locate here no matter what the penalties, or what we call, the cost of doing business here.  Then there are those businesses in the Bay Area and Los Angeles, _________ attainment in California to provide an alternative to Phoenix, Las Vegas, Reno, is to locate them within the Central Valley.  Can we entice them to come here?  


Some we can.  And where we have been successful is consolidations.  Companies closing a northern and southern California location that want to remain in California were viewed as a low cost alternative.  Companies that are heavily regulated, that ultimately want to lower the cost and not consolidate, are moving out of the state.  Well we don’t have any hopes of retaining those companies.  They’re continuing to move out of the state.


Those companies that understand it may be difficult to recruit talented labor, college graduates from MIT and other areas --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So I guess what you’re telling me is that they don’t really don’t care about the air quality here?  So you say, come on down and they say, well, as long as you’ve got cheap labor, either some incentives from the county, we don’t care if we’re moving into an extreme air basin.  It’s not a consideration for them?


MR. SPAUR:  Not true.  There interested.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So how do you get -- if I’m a CEO sitting in front of you, then how do you, if I say, well, I’m kind of concerned.  You know, I understand you just went to extreme.  I’m worried about fines.  I’m worried about the $23 million or so, I might be caught in that 7,000 regulated industries.  I really don’t feel that this is the place where I want to go.  So can you address that issue to me so I can make a decision?  What are you going to tell them?


MR. SPAUR:  I don’t talk to them, Sir.  There’s two approaches.  Those that we can retain.  Those that we’re trying to attract talent; the college graduates and so on, the technology companies that we want, they don’t even consider the Central Valley.  The air quality is harsh.  They don’t view the quality of life as somewhere where they can recruit and retain the talent.  They do not consider us.  They typically locate in Boise, Idaho.  The HP plant, the Microsoft plant, the Boulder, Colorado, the Denver Colorado, and Colorado Springs.  We have lost five top California companies to those locations in the last five years.  We’re not even on the recruitment list.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess my question, again, if you could answer it is, if I asked you a question about -- maybe it’s not you.  Maybe it’s whoever is doing it for you -- but if I asked the Fresno Economic Development Corporation about a concern I had with moving into a basin that was termed serious, and voluntarily took itself to that category, what would be the argument to say come here anyway?  Beyond labor; beyond land; beyond the modal distribution?


MR. SPAUR:  I understand what you’re saying.  I don’t think you understand -- I’m not in a position to argue that with a CEO.  Now, when they ask that question, rarely they don’t -- they just ____________ we never get that opportunity.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. SPAUR:  Now, once in a while there’s a company that, say, is consolidating, and they have to be in California; Raovac is moving from the Bay Area, here.  And they do have a concern on the air quality.  They say, how bad is it?  What we will do is disclose to them records from the San Joaquin Air Pollution Control District.  We’ll talk to them about asthma, and we’ll have them talk to locals who have moved here recently and say we are improving it.  If it’s actually better than it was 10 years ago, the next 

10 years we believe it’s going to be significantly better.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then what about for those in terms of retention?  That’s recruiting.  Retention for folks who’s CEO might have left, and you’re looking for a new CEO, and they read the Fresno Bee 18-page pullout spread on the worst thing, air quality.  Do you think that has an impact on their decision on whether or not they personally want to live in this valley?


MR. SPAUR:  Absolutely.  Most of our business retention projects are the result of the new CEO who’s been hired, and they look at the area and they visit the area and they say, I want to relocate the business.  And what we have to do is, prepare a case study for that CEO, justifying why that business originally came here; why they remain here; and that they ought to consider coming here for a year or so before they decide to relocate that facility.  In two instances in the last six months we’ve been successful in making that case and the CEO has moved here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So I guess then the CEO does care about the air quality?

MR. SPAUR:  Absolutely.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But the business really doesn’t think it’s that big of a deal?

MR. SPAUR:  The business does think it’s a big deal.  And they think that it’s difficult to recruit talent from another area or even another state to locate here because of air quality.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. SPAUR:  And we believe that of the businesses that we recruit, about 150 a year, there are probably twice that number that don’t even consider the valley because of air quality issues.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Would that concern you if they didn’t consider air quality issues and they wanted to move here?  Does it give you any thought that they would be part and parcel the solution that Dave just talked about, businesses working together to clean the air if they didn’t want to come here in the first place; it didn’t bother them?

MR. SPAUR:  It would concern me.  What we would like to do is recruit the 100 best companies to work for in America.  They’re extremely good to their employees.  They pay educational reimbursements.  That’s really the category of companies we have not had any luck in recruiting to the area; 3M, Honeywell, Intel, and HP have said, we’re really not interested in moving to your area.  Chandler, Arizona, Rio Rancho, New Mexico, Colorado Springs, those are desirable areas.  That’s where we’re planning to move in the next 10 years.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then last year we had some companies that relocated out of Fresno County?

MR. SPAUR:  We did.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And they moved to other places in California?

MR. SPAUR:  Not so much they moved out of California, not in California.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So none of those moved in California, they all moved out of California?  Every one of them.

MR. SPAUR:  That’s correct.  The reason is, if you’re going to pick up and move, you’re moving expenses are so high that to reduce those costs or offset those moving costs, it’s much cheaper to move out of state and reduce your workers comp, your health, and your corporate taxes.  This will offset your moving expenses.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And they’re moving -- any idea what portions they’re moving to?

MR. SPAUR:  Reno, Las Vegas, and Phoenix, are the three primary markets we lose companies to.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Manufacturing companies?

MR. SPAUR:  Manufacturing companies.  We have had some warehouse distributions go to Las Vegas.  They have closed and now they’re reconsidering coming back to Fresno, but it’s been five years since they’ve closed that facility.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  A lot of them moving to Tijuana, Mexico?

MR. SPAUR:  We have had actually some move and look at Juarez, Monterey, and set up maquilladoras and then use them at the corridor, but it’s not the California NAFTA corridor.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any idea why they’re moving to, not just across state borders, but setting up the corridor manufacturers?

MR. SPAUR:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why is that?

MR. SPAUR:  Less regulations.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What kind of regulations?

MR. SPAUR:  Mostly air quality and permitting; land use permitting, building permitting; and workers comp.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Roger Isom, California Cotton Ginners and Growers.  Thank you for joining us.

MR. ROGER ISOM:  Thank you, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  And thank you for coming on short notice.  Very much appreciate it.  I’ll preface that by saying that.

MR. ISOM:  Thank you.  I want to point out that I am on here on behalf of two organizations, the California Cotton Ginners Association and the California Cotton Growers Association, that will come forward when I give my discussion to talk about it.

I appreciate the opportunity to come before you.  I would like to clear up some misconceptions and maybe answer a few questions that you brought up and some of the other speakers have brought up in this morning’s discussions.

First of all, I want to make it real clear that agriculture understands the need for clean air, okay.  We live here in the valley.  Our crops suffer due to ozone particulate matter.  We understand that despite the comments that have been made otherwise.  And in fact, agriculture hasn’t been waiting for any mandates to come down.  We’ve made progress in several areas, and I’m going to go into those.

The first thing I want to talk about is to clear up one misconception.  And it’s important that if you look at the Health and Safety Code, this exemption that everybody has talked about, agriculture is exempt, I want to point out, it says, “exempt from permitting.”  It doesn’t say exempt from regulation.  It says, “exempt from permitting,” okay.  We are regulated and have been regulated for several years.  And I’m going to cover those real quickly.

First, the area of PM-10.  We’ve been under a mandate now for a little over a year for unpaved roads and equipment yards on farms.  And in fact, the agricultural industry has put together an advisory booklet simplifying those 50 some pages of rules into six pages, to show our farmers, hey, here’s what it takes to comply in very simple terms.

Beyond that, you talked about going beyond -- what people are doing beyond that.  For over three years we’ve been using the program through USDA called, “Environmental Quality Incentives Program, or EQIP.”  And under that program we have oiled over 500 miles of unpaved roads in the San Joaquin Valley, and that’s created a little over 400 tons of PM-10 emission reductions here in the valley.  Again, that was pre any type of mandate, okay.

We burn low-sulfur diesels.  Somebody mentioned low-sulfur diesel.  We are the only state that requires agriculture to burn low-sulfur diesel.  If I go to Arizona, to Nevada, anywhere, all my competitors, the cotton belt across the United States, can burn high sulfur diesel.  In California, we can’t.

In 2006, there’s a new federal diesel fuel that’s coming into effect; the same thing applies.  We will be burning that ultra low-sulfur diesel that’s the new federal standard, but everywhere else in the United States, will not be burning that.  On-road they will have to, but off-road they will not.

On field activities; somebody has talked about the disking, the harvesting.  You guys don’t do anything on that.  For six months now we’ve been meeting with the local air districts, with EPA Region 9, with the Air Resources Board, to develop a list of conservation manager practices, and have come up with a list of well over 100 practices to apply to over 20 different crops, the major commodities.  And this was even before the district comes out with their PM-10 plan to put that in motion.  But I doubt the plan will be out until next week or the week after.  We’ve already been working with them on that.  The rule to mandate this will be in January 1, 2004.  We hope to have -- in fact, the fact is, a lot of those control measures that are on there are already in place.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that’s reg 8 that you’re talking about?

MR. ISOM:  No.  This is -- reg 8 right now is specifically limited to what we call off field activity; unpaved roads, equipment yards.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I see.  I got you.

MR. ISOM:  This is going to take you to the on field, okay.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  On?  Okay.

MR. ISOM:  And, in fact, we have lobbied USDA and Congress and a couple of other aspects to help out on that.  The first one is, can we get some experts that are knowledgeable with agriculture, yet can help on air quality, and the USDA has created those types of positions.  And, in fact, one of them is here in the audience today.

We’ve also put in the farm bill, taking money from that same program that I discussed before, EQIP, to cover conservation management practices on the farms.

A new program called the Conservation Security Program, or CSP, the same thing.  Farmers will be able to get money if they implement practices that reduce air emissions.  It’s the first time it’s ever been put in place, and that was in the latest farm bill.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you get us that language?

MR. ISOM:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

MR. ISOM:  Let me switch from PM-10 over to ozone.  Since 1994, we’ve been under a mandate from the state, it’s contained in the state implementation plan, to reduce VOC, or volatile organic compound emissions, from pesticides from by 20 percent from the levels they were in 1990.  That’s a mandate.  We’re already doing it.  We’ve already met -- we had from 1990 to 2005 to get that 20 percent.  We’ve already met that 20 percent, according to the Air Resources Board, this year.  Does that mean we’ve stopped?  No.  We’re still implementing the types of practices to get us to that integrated pest management, genetically modified crops that don’t require you to spray pesticides, and things like that.  So we’ve already met that mandate.  

On a voluntary basis it’s been discussed, the Carl Moyer Program.  Over 2,300 irrigation pump engines have been retrofitted or replaced.  A fantastic program.  And somebody mentioned, and I think you asked, the Carl Moyer Program money is gone, what are you going to do now?  

The same lobbying effort.  We went to the USDA and said, hey, we need some more EQIP money designated for California.  We’ve got a real issue here.  We’ve got to get these engines retrofitted or replaced.  There are probably another 2,000 or so out there that we’ve got to do. 

And just two weeks ago, the USDA was here for a meeting and announced that they’re going to give us about $12 million over four years to replace those remaining engines.  I don’t know if that will cover all those engines that are out there, but certainly it will go along way towards helping us do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

MR. ISOM:  And in fact, the agricultural industry in California, we wrote, we personally wrote those standards and the prioritization guidelines, to see who gets the money first.  It’s going to be based on -- one factor will be air quality status.  So, severe or extreme will get the highest priority, and those monies will be funneled down to the San Joaquin Valley.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Roger, are you saying then you get more money in that particular language if we go to the extreme category?

MR. ISOM:  The prioritization.  So if I was a farmer in Butte County or a farmer in Fresno County going to extreme, I’m going to go ahead in the list --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Prioritization.  I got you.

MR. ISOM:  In addition to those pump engines, we have a limited there.  They’re a little bit more difficult, but we actually have retrofitted some tractors, combines, over fifty of those, under that same program with lower emitting engines.  And we’re continuing to expand out wide.  In the next phase under EQIP, we will be expanding out to tractors and combines as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. ISOM:  Degreasing regulation, I believe that Dave Crow mentioned that.  If I have a parts washer; I’m a farm shop and it’s large enough; I would have to have the same control; the same low VOC solvent that any auto shop or anybody else would have to do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. ISOM:  So those are the things we either are already regulated, or already doing.  There are some other things that are kind of involuntary.  We’re losing about 11,000 acres a year to urban built-up land in the San Joaquin Valley, so our emissions are going down whether we want them to or not just through land conversion from ag to urban built-up land.

So that, I think, talks about the mandates that are out there.  The one last one that has been brought up several times is Title V.  Let me talk about that for a minute if I can.

I’ll say it, and I know that any one of the industry people out here will tell you this, and I believe the Air Resources Board.  Title V will do absolutely nothing for clean air.  All it is, is a permit.  It’s not a mandate to reduce emissions.  It’s simply a piece of paper and some fees associated with it.  Okay, so when we say the agricultural industry is opposed to a Title V permit, we are.  Absolutely.  But so, I believe, is any other industry out there.

Now, do we know that we have to change it?  Absolutely.  The agricultural industry came up with the initial language.  That language was developed with ag in consultation with the Air Resources Board and CAPCOA .  And in fact, Mike Kinney, with the Air Resources Board even signed off on that original language.  CAPCOA, the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association, asked us, hey, before we get in this process, can we make sure the EPA is okay with this before we send the language out to the legislator and have it argued there?  Let’s get it reviewed.  Get them to sign off on it.  And if there are any revisions we need to make, we’ll make those and then we’ll introduce it.  And we followed that process and the EPA has responded back and now we’ll have to amend our language a little bit to do that.  And I think that we’ll be okay with that.  But remember, we’re the ones that -- we knew that if there was a problem, we’re the ones that originated that process to get that ball rolling.  Unfortunately, it just didn’t happen quick enough.  But we did initiate that process.  I want to make sure that that is very clear, that we did do that.

And in fact, the Poochigian letter that was submitted to the EPA was done at our request with CAPCOA to get that answer so that no games would be played on that.

Another point that was brought up with Title V and the comment the EPA said was, the new source review.  I’m going to answer that from two different aspects.  

First, we knew that all along, because, again, the language that’s in there was strictly permitting.  We knew that any type of regulation, whatever, that was going to come along with that.  So, it was really just a point of clarification.  I think if you read that letter back to the Senator real closely, it just says, we want to clarify that you understand new source review, PSD comes along with that.  We understood that, and we’re fine with that modification to the language.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, when you say you’re fine with that modification to the language, I guess my question would be, do you read that language as going further than just eliminating the exemption then?

MR. ISOM:  Speaking specifically to the language that EPA suggested back in the Poochigian letter, no I don’t.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.

MR. ISOM:  Because we interpreted it that new source review and PSD came along with that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But your assumption is that it comes together then, right?

MR. ISOM:  Yes.  I mean, I don’t have any reason to say that it wouldn’t.  The only, as far as the impact of new source review is -- and I won’t speak for the dairy industry because I think that might be different -- but the impact of NSR for ag here in the valley, it’s not going to have any impact.  And the reason is, we’re not building new farms.  We’re not adding new engines.  There’s nothing in there that’s going to change the way we do business just because we’re not expanding or building anything new.  So I want to make sure that people understand that.

Now as far as the original point of the discussion today was, what’s the impact of missing these deadlines?  What does that mean?  And that’s the point that I wanted to make for is from two.

From the growers perspective, obviously these sanctions don’t apply to us at this point.  We have offset ratios for permit sources and that, so I can’t speak to that.  For the gins, though, for our dehydrators, for our food processors, it is impacted.  

Five years ago we built a roller gin in Fresno County and he spent over $100,000 in offsets.  Had the sanctions been in place, obviously it would have been closer to $200,000.  So, definitely, an impact, and I won’t dispute that.

However, there’s also an impact from making the deadlines.  If we were to make those deadlines and let me speak to that for a minute.  And this really applies to the growers side in the information.

If you go back to when PM-10 came about, when was that standard set?  It was 1987.  You know, just a few years ago.  The EPA set the standard, but they had not data.  They had no information.  They didn’t know any of the sources of PM-10, where they had some science that was based on total particulate, or just dust, but it was all based on wind blown dust information.

And if we were to apply everything that EPA knew and everything EPA had in their guidance at that time, we would be nowhere near attainment.  We wouldn’t be any closer than we are today.  And the reason is, for example, one of the standards that’s been put in place for PM-10 control in the South Coast air district is, these no till days if the wind exceeds or is predicted to exceed 25 miles per hour, you cease all operations.


Well if you compare our wind day to here in the San Joaquin Valley to our exceedences, when the wind gets up over 25 miles per hour, we don’t have any exceedences.  Our exceedences here occur when the air is very stagnant, when there is no air movement.  And so what we need to turn the focus from is, wind blown dust to when we’re disturbing the soil.  When does that tractor go into the field?  And that’s where we need to focus.  But there was no research, no guidance back when these standards were set.  So we’ve picked up the ball there and said, okay, what are we going to do?

We initiated with the air district, with the EPA, a very comprehensive study.  And I think you mentioned one of them, the Central California Ozone Study.  There’s also the California Regional Particulate Matter Air Quality Study.  It’s the only one of it’s kind in the world.  Some of the science that’s come out of there is the first that’s ever been done.  We’ve actually measured emissions from cotton pickers, from almond harvesters.  We’ve measured differences between old style almond harvesters and new style almond harvesters.  Without that data, we wouldn’t be working toward attainment like we are today.


So I want to make sure that that is understood.  There is some cost with making those deadlines that were set before any of this science was ever put in place.


And I’m going to leave this final comment, and it’s one that you seem to pick up on quite a bit.  What’s going beyond the minimum?  What are we doing?  And I’ll use my example of my cotton gins again.


In two weeks, the air district is going to release a PM-10 plan, and in there is going to be a specific rule that will require a cotton gins to retrofit the air pollution control.  They’re not going to get very many reductions from that.  And the primary reason is, is that we sat down with the air district several years ago, we worked out some very simplistic templates; some policies that dealt specifically with gins.  And we have retrofitted 85 percent of those gins before the rule has ever been put in place.  And I don’t have the numbers of how many PM-10 emission reductions that equates to, but I can tell you it’s very significant.  And it was only due to us being able to work with the district.  And in fact, the comment was made that it takes months to get permits to reduce emissions, I can tell you, we did three projects this winter and were able to receive the authority to construct to do those retrofit projects in less than a month.  Simply sitting down and doing the work, admitting that there’s an issue and working it out with the district and moving ahead.

And I guess as my final comment, is that it’s -- people have been led to believe, the general public’s been led to believe that ag isn’t doing anything.  That’s an absolute mistake.  If you do the research, if you look at what’s actually been done out there, maybe we haven’t been tooting our horn enough, but we have been doing things.  We have great success stories with EQIP and with Carl Moyer, and I think that needs to be considered.


That’s the end of my statement.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well that was a pretty good tootin’ horn session.  You did a good job.  Just a couple of questions if I could, Roger.

In terms of the --what I kind of hear you saying and don’t let me characterize it incorrectly -- you kind of say Title V is not going to have an impact.  New source reduction is not going to have an impact.  I mean, nothing is going to have an impact, so what are you saying by that?  I mean, are you saying, so what?  What does that mean?  Where are you taking us with that?  I mean, you’re obviously saying it for a reason.  Nothing we’re doing here is having an impact, so what are you saying that for?


MR. ISOM:  I’m just trying to make sure that people understand that they think, wow, get rid of the Title V exemption.  That all of a sudden we’re going to be in attainment.  I just want you to understand, that’s not going to get us into attainment.  We need to focus on things like the Carl Moyer Program, EQIP, get rid of the standby charges. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Got you.  Okay.  


MR. ISOM:  It’s a roll-up-your-sleeves type of thing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I wouldn’t feel comfortable if I didn’t ask you that question right here.

The second one is, you mentioned the fact that -- so we talked about the no impact -- you also kind of around the edges talked about ag not getting its story out.  And I don’t know how to put it any other way, but why is that?


MR. ISOM:  Up until now they’re -- honestly, I can’t answer that.  My best answer is that there hasn’t been a need to.  For example, with the gins, we’ve just been doing it.  There hasn’t been this permit requirement, so --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I got you.  Okay.  Well, I’ll see you in Bakersfield next week.  All right.  Thanks a lot.  Appreciate it.  Very good comments.


Our last two folks is Alan McCuen, CalTrans.  And after that, we’re going to have Barbara Goodwin, and then we’re going to take some public comments.  Alan, just tell me we have money for Highway 46 and you can --


MR. ALAN MCUEN:  We’re working on it.  Still there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Good.  Thanks for joining us.  Just you’re impressions if we don’t meet the federal Clean Air Act.  You kind of know where we’re going here.


MR. ALAN MCCUEN:  Thank you very much, Senator Florez.  It’s good to be here and have the opportunity to speak before your committee.  I’m the Deputy District Director for our CalTrans office in Fresno.  It covers the southern five districts from Madera, Fresno, Kings, Tulare, and Kern County.  The information that I provide today, however, will cover the entire eight counties of the San Joaquin area, which will include our district _______ office and the counties of Merced, Stanislaus, and San Joaquin County.  


I’m going to be describing a kind of a picture of our transportation programs that have federal involvement because that’s the key here of those programs that have federal involvement or those systems that have to have federal involvement.  So we have local dollars participating, that they’re on the state and federal system.  So there’s an impact as far as it relates to sanctions.


And what I provide to you is going to be a snapshot in time.  Our dollar levels changed significantly over a period of time, and what I’m going to be providing is where it stands right now.  If we have a financial crisis they go down.  Just the order of magnitude to let you know in our eight counties, San Joaquin Valley regions, we have about 300 major transportation projects that are currently in the pipeline.  The total value of those projects is about $2.9 billion, so it’s a pretty sizeable amount of funding that is currently in process at this point in time.  Those numbers do not include transfer funds.  All those would be streets, roads, highway type funds.


These funds, for clarification purposes are categorized in four categories.  I’m just going to describe what those are so you can get a relationship of how they relate to not just the system, but also maybe the jurisdictions that are affected as well.  


The state transportation __________ program is the largest program.  It is the program that most of our major projects fall under.  The process for that program is a partner process in terms of the funds availability decisions between a regional transportation planning agency, and each county is a regional transportation planning agency in the San Joaquin Valley, and they receive about 75 percent of the state highway account funds that go over to that program.  And CalTrans receives 25 percent of those.  What that means is, is they have the decision power on that part of the dollar of funds and we have the decision making on the 25 percent.  These are major new capacity, new freeways, new lanes, new interchanges, modifications to interchanges.

And that program amounts to about $1.9 billion of that $2.9 billion that I mentioned before.  Just to let you know what that relates to the air quality sanctions, our best estimate is about 95 percent of that $1.9 billion would be subject to sanctions if sanctions came into place.


The second program, the Highway Operation Protection Program, that’s our program where which we maintain, operate a safe highway system.  ___________ overlays and signals, intersection improvements, etc.  That’s about $500 million worth of value in projects there.  About 10 percent of those would definitely be affected by air quality.  So that means 90 percent may, and I say may, because there’s some qualifications in the exemption process you have to go through to determine if they are exempt.  It has to relate to safety, is what it boils down to.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


MR. MCCUEN:  The third category of funding is the County Transportation Sales Tax Program.  Here in Fresno, they have a county sales tax program in place at Madera and I believe one in Stanislaus.  We have three in the San Joaquin Valley.  Most of those have gone through their course and have a lot of expenditures already.  And my estimate is 90 to 100 million left in that category that may or may not be affected by air quality sanctions.


And the last ________ category is the Local Assistance Programs.  These are programs where federal money comes through the state and then we funnel that to the counties and cities for their street and road purposes.  And that is about another 

$500 million worth of program level activity.  And depending on the type of projects that the cities and the counties propose, there would be capacity of new lane addition ______ definitely would be _________ sanctions.  Others, it’s just a minor _______ type project ___________ I don’t have the percentage there because it depends on the character of the projects.


Having said we have 2.9 billion worth of dollars in the program, our best guess then, after describing ________ different programs and the different categories of projects that about $2.1 or $2.1 billion worth of that $2.9 would be subject to air quality conformity sanctions.  So air quality sanctions ____________


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s $2.1?


MR. MCCUEN:  $2.1.  And again, these are all snapshot values at this point in time.


And that would mean that about $150 million of our program is definitely going to be exempt.  And then the remaining part, which is about $620 million, is then subject; maybe it is, maybe it isn’t, category.  


So that’s kind of an overview of how the funding picture looks at this point in time.  The transportation program overall is intended to meet safety operational congestion relief programs and to satisfy economic vitality in the San Joaquin Valley.  So that’s the target of the whole ___________ .  There’s an impact on all of those depending on the amount of delay.  And I do describe this in terms of delay.  We may lose dollars because it’s delayed for a certain amount of time then it may be taken someplace else.  It can be taken to another part of the state, so potentially we can loose it.  We may get it back, but we have to compete for those dollars depending on the length of time or the delay that would take place in order to get the federal approval for the implementation.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But in the STIP process we would probably, if we were to lose money, go to the bottom of the list again and have to work our way up?


MR. MCCUEN:  We’re going to have to recompete if we lost the dollars.  Our approach statewide in CalTrans would be to put those dollars to work wherever they could be used in the state.  So they could be lost __________ for a period of time but we have to recompete, yes..


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Altogether.  Just one question.  Obviously CalTrans did its 25-year vision plan, and I was wondering if whether this sort of loss of federal dollars was calculated into that plan?


MR. MCCUEN:  Well, I think the answer would be no at this point, because we’re still subject to this.  We haven’t actually had sanctions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  But it wasn’t factored in.  So, would you consider this loss somewhat devastating to that 25-year plan?


MR. MCCUEN:  For the San Joaquin Valley, it definitely would.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.  Thank you very much.  Barbara Goodwin, Council of Fresno County Governments.  Thank you for joining us.


MS. BARBARA GOODWIN:  Thank you, Senator.  I appreciate the opportunity to appear before you.  And I’m going to get into some discussions that are probably not so exciting.  In some respects because they are process related, but they are very important to understand how that process relates to the loss of transportation dollars, and also other costs to the taxpayers.

I did provide you some copies of a paper that we provided to the California Transportation Commission a while back on transportation conformity.  I’m not going to go through all of that.  You can look at that at your leisure.  However, it explains, hopefully, we tried to do it like a transportation conformity 101 in a fairly understandable language without being _______ technical language of the federal law.  What happens and what we must do in order to show that our transportation projects are indeed going to help improve the air quality within the San Joaquin Valley ___________ the state.  


We’ve been talking about sanctions this morning, and that would appear on about page-10 in that presentation.

Now, sanctions occur when something happens at the district level.  The air district level.  And what that means is that very likely the air district plan has not been approved, or a rule hasn’t been implemented, or the EPA has some problems with portions of the plan.  And so sanctions apply when something occurs at the district level.


For the transportation agencies, we also, and this is on the next page, regional agencies must submit transportation plans every three years, and our capital improvement programs every two years.  If we fail to submit timely, or we cannot provide proof that all our transportation plans and projects are indeed in conformity, which is a technical term that really is just -- isn’t consistent with what’s being proposed in terms of the emissions _______ the air district, then we are subject to something called a lapse, and although different from a sanction, it will also mean transportation projects are at risk.  And that lapse continues until we’re in compliance.


Interestingly enough, because we need them -- is something I call the data match challenge -- regional agencies, we provide them with the data to the districts and the air boards for the development of those state implementation plans.  And of course, as you’ve heard, they’re on different timelines because they’re based on different pollutants.

Well we have to do our transportation plan updates every three years.  We have to do the capital improvement program every two years.  We’re required by both -- actually from the Transportation Act and then the Clean Air Act, to use the latest planning assumptions of population vehicle miles traveled, etc.  So if the data doesn’t match from when the air district developed its state implementation plan, we may not be able to show conformity because we’re using inconsistent information.  And so our transportation projects and plans may lapse, and that would cause a loss of delivery projects.  That’s something that I call, killing the messenger, about the data not matching.  This is where I’d like to see a reconciliation of federal law.  


Federal law requires regional agencies, such as the Fresno COG --and by the way, I’m speaking today on behalf on not only the Fresno COG but the other seven valley COGs -- but requires us to perform conformity tests within 18 months of any new update that the air district might do.  And this is so new information that we have can be considered in the conformity test so the air qualities can be pursued timely.  And we all believe in achieving those goals.  But there’s no reciprocal requirement for SIPs to be updated when we provide data that shows we have some new data that is now inconsistent with the SIP and emission data is inconsistent with what was used to develop the budgets and so on and so forth, and so it no longer matches.  And so if we cannot show conformity, the penalty, the lapse is applied against the region and the transportation projects.  And again, I call that, killing the messenger.


What we’d like to see is, that these timelines for SIPs and regional updates, if the data is inconsistent, one should trigger the other, because we cannot achieve realistically good quality scientific information unless we’re using consistent data.


There’s also something called a hostage situation, where the control is in the hands of other agencies.  Recently, emission analysis tooled for the conformity test is provided by the Air Resources Board, and it’s approved in the federal register by the Environmental Protection Agency.  


Last year we had an issue where because the data for vehicle emissions spoke to age _________, it was out of date, but it was hardwired into the ARB model.  So we at the COG level, could not really change that data, and there was a great deal of question by EPA, and of course our federal partners, the Federal Highway Administration, about how can you improve conformity if your data is out of -- is not current.  And yet, we have no way of getting in and changing that data in terms of making it appropriate.  And the result of that was, even though it was an issue at the regional level, the resolution was really between the federal and the state agencies, and its penalties, or lapses, or sanctions, would have been happening down at the local level.


And we are now in something called conformity lockdown statewide, because EPA has now getting set to approve the new emissions model which is called an impact 2002.  That will then be used by all the transportation agencies to develop data that we will use in providing information to the air districts for the development of state implementation plan.  And also to then, after those plans are put in place, to provide conformity analysis.

We can do no amendment.  This is statewide.  There can be no amendments that require regional analysis on passing and enhancing projects right now until we have improved level of emissions model which is estimated to be in March 2003.  Then for the San Joaquin Valley, the emission models also need to be found adequate to end that lockdown in June 2003.  And I’m not sure exactly where we are in the approval process of that model.  I haven’t heard that it has taken place yet.


And before we get into actual dollar numbers and projects by county, I want to also address, there’s a state law that is also a question.


Assembly Bill 1012 was passed by the state some time ago, and it’s a very good law.  It echoes a federal law that says, if you’re getting federal money, you, the state, CalTrans, you all have to spend it within three years or you’re going to lose it.  It’s called, Use It Or Lose It law.  But if sanctions and lapses occur under situations that we have no control, that law still is in place.  There is no administrative remedy to set it aside or waive it.  So depending on, for instance, if we were in a lapse because of the data mismatch, we might be at risk of losing funds not because those projects might not do it, because we have inconsistent data.  So there are some federal and state reconciliations that we think need to be made in the law in order to make this process workable rather than just onerous and a cost to the taxpayers.


For instance, a regional transportation plan update that we do every three years, costs in relative terms about $120,000 times eight of us in the valley.  That runs anywhere from $800,000 to $1 million every three years.  We have to do that regional transportation plan, but if -- in concert with that, we also have to do a conformity determination.  Now a single conformity determination might cost as much as $45,000 to do all the ________ times eight, that’s around $350,000, $360,000.  In addition, we have ongoing costs keeping all that data up to date within those models, so that we can come up with the appropriate information.  Again, if we do a conformity determination that is at a $45,000 cost that we know wouldn’t be able to show conformity because the data doesn’t match, we don’t particularly think that’s a very effective use of those taxpayer funds, especially if we know that going in.


At this point in time, I’d like to just mention some of the valley projects.  I know that you wanted to know what types of valley projects are potentially affected by the sanctions.  And this could be sanctions, lapses, or any of the lockdowns situations.


In Fresno, that would be improvements to Route 180 East and 180 West.  These are just examples.  That’s about $200 million.  And the widening of State Route 99 near Selma from four to six lanes at a cost of about $56 million.  


In your home county of Kern County, the widening of State Route 46 from two to four lanes at a cost of $68 million would be subject to this.  The west side parkway improvements at about $173 million would be also subject to that delay.


In Kings County, the widening of State Route 98 from two to four lanes at a cost of $50 million.


In Madera County, off ramp improvements for Madera Hospital at Route 145 and State Route 99 at a cost of $9 million.

Merced, the widening of State Route 99 from four to six lanes at $70 million.  And their Campus Parkway from State Route 99 to UC Merced at $40 million.


We don’t have information at this time for San Joaquin ________ connection.


In Stanislaus, the widening of State Route 132 from two to four lanes, $225 million.  And the widening of State Route 219 from two to four lanes, $27 million.  


Tulare County, again, the widening of State Route 99 from four to six lanes at 

$50 million.


As you can see by these, these are all ________ enhancement projects.  Those were the ones that would be affected most by sanctions and lapses.  We didn’t include any transit projects, that one anomaly of sanctions and conformity lapses is that anything that’s capacity enhancement would be held up.  For instance, if our transit agency also wanted to show its expansion with this transit service, even though we’re likely to be able to work with EPA and ARB to do those on a subjective case by case basis, technically, they are also held up by sanctions or lapses for the very fact that they are not neutral projects.  They either negatively or positively -- if anything negatively or positively impact the air quality, those projects cannot be pursued any further because they have to be looked at in totality.  


So with that I think I’ll stop it.  I hope that answers some of the questions you have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It does actually.  In fact, you’ve answered most of the questions on my sheet here.  In terms of just two.  Number one, has your board written a contingency plan in terms of what would happen if we withheld these funds?


MS. GOODWIN:  We do know that if we were to have those funds withheld, we would be looking at neutral projects to move ahead very quickly with.  The difficulty there is a lot of those also require environmental approvals, right of way approvals.  In a sanction and lockdown or lapse or any of those terms, if we have to get federal approval to do any of those things, unless it’s a neutral project, all of those approvals would be held up.  So, unless we have a large shelf ready project of neutral projects ready to go ahead, it will be difficult to replace these multimillion dollar projects with a number, especially valley wide, a number of very small projects.  And the counties and cities, as you all know, are facing their own budget crisis, and so it’s unlikely that they’re just getting projects ready to go, to just sit on the shelf.  So, it will be difficult.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Has the board, though, discussed some contingency plan that was the event?


MS. GOODWIN:  The contingency plan is again to -- we have to look at this as Alan mentioned, that this is a rolling thing.  We don’t know if the exact amount at any given time --


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.  I got you.  I see.


MS. GOODWIN:  So we do have contingencies about the policy side that we would know what to do, but we would have to go into the specifics at the time that it occurred.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  We now, are at the point of public comment, I’d like to ask if everyone in public comment could please limit their comments to five minutes or less.  And we are always welcome to receive your comments or anything that you did not cover in writing.  So why don’t we start with Paula Ferris.  Thank you for joining us.


MS. PAULA FERRIS:  Thank you.  I got a call Wednesday afternoon while I was doing business in the Bay Area about coming.  I’m a little new to this so let me introduce myself.  Paula Ferris.  I’m one of the principals of Handcarft Marketing, and I’m also here as vice chair of membership of the greater Fresno area chamber.  The Chamber of Commerce has a little bit different.  We really are an organization of small businesses.  We have a constituency of about 2,000.  And I’d like to, rather than dealing with right or wrong on these issues, what I’d like to do is talk a little bit about the discussion that happened that are ag, environmental issues, or our government view council, so you can kind of feel some of the issues that we face.


First of all, these are all human beings that also may have asthma, they have children or infants with asthma, or employees.  And so, as you’re thinking about this, they have real human concerns about the human impact of this.  But here is what they’re also thinking, well how do we run a successful business at the same time?  The topics usually deals with uncertainty right now.  The impact of changing rules, regulations and framework.  Business thrives when we have structure within which we can do our projections and we can figure out how to be profitable and how to employ people.


Discussion talks about lost revenue, health related costs.  These rise, and certainly air quality has a huge impact on that kind of change.  Employee absenteeism, sick days.  How do you keep up production?  How do you continue to provide services to customers and clients that you have?  Lost talent.  I have a very specific example.  We have some very special areas on marketing for technology.  We tried to bring an employee from the Bay Area, relocate him to our own business, and within a year lost him because the children got asthma and it was a serious problem.  Lost of economic development.  Those things have been talked about today.  Loss of existing businesses.  A big question that’s around the discussion table; how much restructuring, retooling generated by regulations can specific businesses afford, particularly when we may not have public funds to help with some of the transitions that need to be made?


Funding for change; research incentives, new technology to fund some new ideas, fund transitions, these are the kinds of discussions and help that business needs.  I think all segments, whether it’s regulated or unregulated.  If we want to involve people in voluntary actions, you know, maybe some funding could _______.  You know, our company has had a voluntary program where we do incentives for our employees to encourage trip linking and carpooling.  We’ve done it for three years.  We didn’t have to do it.  So how do we involve that?


I think many businesses want to do a good job.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.  We have Claudia Soria Delgado.  Thank you for joining us.


MS. CLAUDIA SORIA DELGADO:  Thank you very much, Senator Dean Florez.  _________.  For those of you who are Spanish impaired individuals, I just stated to the Senator, it is always a pleasure.


My name is Claudia Soria Delgado, and I am employed with Latino Issues _____ in the Fresno regional office.  And we have a Latino environmental health justice project.  And first and foremost, I just wanted to say thank you for all of your legislation that is currently pending.  I have some brief commentary as it pertains to incentives. 


It is a good thing that ag and other industries are getting some incentives to assist them in being more effective partners for clean air.  But we also need to think of what incentives would be effective for the residents in the San Joaquin Valley, especially when referred to the working and low-income class as many times we economically repressed communities are forgotten in this process.  We certainly do not need to create another burden for San Joaquin Valley residents that keep our economy strong and are not financially prepared.


Lastly, as it pertains to hybrid vehicles.  We should strongly consider bringing back the incentives for the middle and working class to purchase hybrid automobiles that will allow more opportunities for more San Joaquin Valley residents to contribute to improve air quality.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Kevin Hall.  


MR. KEVIN HALL:  Good afternoon, Senator.  It’s nice to see you again.  I just wanted to make a couple of quick comments and suggestions.  And the topic today is sanctions.  And I think we want to not always view them as a punishment, but rather an imposition of discipline and a process and it’s ________significant degree to the San Joaquin Valley which has led to our six law suits in less than two years.

And I would like to make a clarification on what Mr. Broadbent said from the EPA.  And that is, that the Earth Justice does not sue, they represent plaintiffs.  So maybe there is some technical differences here, but also we’re characterized as environmentalists.  Certainly the Sierra Club chapters of the valley, all three of them are co-plaintiffs in the suit are joined by _________ advocates _________ as well as ___________, and one or two the earlier suits, the Center on Race, Poverty and Environment.  So, what I’d like to make very clear is that these suits are being about on behalf of residents of the San Joaquin Valley, and that those residents constitute community, health, and environmental interests.


I would urge, or suggest, that you ask the transportation agencies ____ CalTrans to come back with you with more information about a backup plan protecting federal highway dollars.  Nobody has talked about transportation control measures, and those are air quality specific projects that would be incorporated into our state implementation plan and to explore the exemption benefits from sanctions.  I don’t hear anybody discussing that, and I did hear discussion of vehicle miles traveled going up nearly three times the rate of population here in the San Joaquin Valley.  The Carl Moyer Program and the funding of that, and also the business discussion, the attraction of warehouse distribution centers, 80 percent of the growth in Tracy, Stockton in the last five years has been distribution centers.  The growth, as you know, in southern Kern County, distribution centers and throughout the valley is unprecedented.  These folks are coming here because we have the land, we have the lack of congestion that the coastal areas have, and they can consolidate.  As mentioned, those businesses must do business in California.  Those are the indirect sources that are not having to buy their way into our pollution budget.

I think we really need to look at asking those businesses to do their share as well.  And I think that creates a reliable funding stream for programs such as the Carl Moyer Program and biomass plants.  And I strongly suggest that you’re eluding to the creation of a municipal utility districts _______________ energy companies for southern California recycler. 


You also asked the ARB to come back to you with information breaking off the ag contribution from ____________ .  I’d also ask for unpaved roads.  The reg 8 category, I believe, is not included in that pie chart that you were looking at.  That was in a separate category.  


Also, we need to look into when we move to extreme and the thresholds drop, many more farms will be brought into regulatory status, and that should be of concern.


It was suggested that there are new farm sources in the valley.  Of course the removement of large dairies and tree lots and growth through that industry represent a very significant growth are in farming with contribution to air pollution.


It was suggested air quality is improving in the San Joaquin Valley.  Ask ARB to present you with ________ on particulate matter.  I think that they’ll show that those ________ have been raising steadily since 1975.  _______ continue increasing through at least 2020, at least according to their website.

Eight hour ________ you asked about those.  You asked ARB to show you those numbers.  A quick snapshot comparing our valley versus South Coast, between the years 1982, ’92, and 2002, in 1982, the San Joaquin Valley had 108 exceedence days of the federal eight-hour ozone standard, where the South Coast had 166.  Ten years later, we had 119, they had 173.  Last year, we had 124 and they had 98.  The trends are pretty obvious.  There’s some ups and downs and some fluctuations.  Ours is not improving, and seems to be growing again, whereas South Coast has dropped its dramatically.


Thanks for coming, again.  I appreciate your time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Thanks, Kevin.  Okay, Manuel Cunjo.


MR. MANUEL CUNJO:  Thank you very much, Senator Florez, staff.  And, thanks, Mr. Dave Crow, for allowing this forum to be held here in our valley in Fresno at the air district.  I’ll make it quick.  


The first thing I would like to address is the biomass situation.  Your governor, with the groups several years ago, $30 million, we never saw the biomass industry after we gave them the money.  Also was tax incentive credits, never saw them again until here three months ago when they were trying to get us to support something at the Energy Commission.  


Biomass as just described by Mr. Hall, I usually don’t agree with Mr. Hall, but I will have to agree on this one, is that the Dinuba plant is being brought L.A. Lumber.  And that’s okay.  We’ll keep doing that because they can afford to pay for the lumber.

Coming in here to biomasses when the people are talking about getting rid of agricultural burning altogether in some form of discussions all around the state.  And you and the Senate, the Assembly, appropriated a lot of money to the biomasses to do things is a failure, because they have taken advantage even of this district and other air districts under funding, and the very small part that they get from the ag industry.


We are going beyond that.  We are working with Los Angeles to do some various projects in this valley.  In Kettlemen City, with some 300,000 tons of agricultural burn that will go through a processing composting facility.  Again, partnering with L.A., but on a professional level of dealing with the types of trucks that bring biosolids into this valley, addressing natural gas vehicles driven versus old diesel trucks.  So the ag industry is continually looking at burning.  


We have formed an agricultural burn committee for the valley.  We had our first meeting a month and a half ago, and the industry now has a subcommittee to pull together and work with this district on the 5-, 10-, and 20-year burn program in this valley.  There’s also a statewide burn committee for agriculture to deal with burning, as well as tied into the WRAP, the Western Air Partnership, which is thirteen states of all the governors.  We are part of that.


If we’re going to deal with ag burning, we also must deal with prescribed burning forests and parks, as well.  As what was allotted in 1999 for California to smoke up one million acres of forest land for purposes of disease, prevention of wild fires and all that.  We need to look at it all.  We’re not just saying that ag is the problem, but we need to look at it on a statewide basis and make sense of what we’re trying to do.  So I think we need to look at burning and we support the concept of that.


Last is, I’d like to make just a clarification if I could, Mr. Senator.  And that is, upon the discussion of the EPA letter that was sent, requested by Senator Poochigian and responded by EPA was that if in fact you responded to the Senator’s letter, EPA, what would be the language that would resolve the issue between the state and the federal sanctions?  And so, EPA wrote the language and said, “This would resolve the entire problem.”  Now, is that language which EPA has, does it also serve the question that was asked by you, Senator, does your bill, remove the entire exemption, or does this letter resolve the issue as well?  And that is a question that maybe needs to be clarified.


Now the rest of this, we look forward to working with you and your staff in agriculture.  Mr. Isom said it very well, we are doing a lot.

The media has not publicized what we have done a lot at all.  We have had a lot of meetings with all of the types of papers in the state, including TV programs, to say that we are not exempt.  It’s a permit issue.  A piece of paper that we cannot, and I want to make this clear, as you well know, Senator -- the oil industry has done an impeccable job, that they’re able to forward the cost onto the public.  I cannot tell ____________ any of those stores, you now are going to have to buy my fruit for $10 a box because I’ve got all these.  We have no way to tell a buyer to forward our cost onto the public at all.

So we appreciate, and I mean this very sincerely, your efforts on the Carl Moyer Program.  Four years ago when we came and worked with you to get that for all businesses, not just agriculture as some people in the media believe, that it was just ag that got the money.  And also, the ag industry knew that the governor and you folks are trying to get through a budget crisis.  We worked our butts off.

On the 2002 farm bill, from the _______ farm bill history, the East boys take control over the soy beans and the tobacco controls the farm bill.  For us to put air quality as a major component of conservation, it was a tremendous job on our part, and I commend Mr. Roger Isom, the ______ Farmers League, and the Farm Bureau for putting a huge effort in getting that into the farm bill, so that we can get help -- assistance funds.  Not 100 percent, but I do want to say that we worked hard to do that because your budget has problems.  We can’t ask you to come and give more money when you can’t do that.  So we stepped out in front.

Our goal is to clean up the air because we’re part of it.  And we want to work with you, Senator, on your bills that make economic sense to our industries, to the state, and to the businesses.

And the last thing I’ll say, the reason businesses are leaving California is the regulatory environment.  I serve on the advisory board to the Federal Reserve, and last month we had our first meeting.  And for 13 states, there is a tremendous amount of discussion of regulatory requirements on businesses.  

So with that, thank you again for coming here and taking the time with your staff to allow the public and various agencies to speak.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Manuel, thank you.  And as you probably know, we have a lot of work to do.  We have quite a bit of work to do on all of these.  So, I appreciate it very much.

Our last speaker, unless there is somebody else that would like to make comments, is Laura Dennison, the League of Women Voters.

MS. LAURA DENNISON:  I’ll be very, very brief.  But I wanted to say that I had some experience looking through project clean air’s viewpoint at the air problems.  And I want to say that I hope that the sanctions will be explained for the extreme status that we may have to take.

To the public, there’s been remarkably poor public education on all of these things.  And I think that CARB itself has lacked vision in for instance, not having put some, at least information if not better emission standards for the SUVs and the trucks, light trucks in the past.  And then the local districts in enforcing some of the things they had and should have enforced passed more strictly.  But I just think that as a person who is a member of the public, rights specifically not of industry, I find it hard to understand how business can be talking about -- complaining about the regulations, when it is the public that benefits from regulations.  And had we had more and stricter ones, we would not, perhaps, be in this situation.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Laura.  Appreciate that.  Any other comments from the public?  Okay, seeing and hearing none, I will say thank you to everyone who stuck around.  I’m sorry to go over twenty minutes.  But I will say, as I mentioned, this is the third of thirteen hearings that we plan.  And the next hearing is going to be held in Bakersfield next Friday at the Ag Pavillion.  And the issue there at hand is specifically the issues of ag, agriculture in general, and air pollution.  The topics you mentioned just briefly we skimmed over today; ag burning; the issues of permits; the issues pertaining to our bill, SB 700.  So I would encourage you to all join us again for continued discussion on this particular topic that will be in Bakersfield starting at 10 A.M.

So with that, we’ll adjourn.  And I want to thank everyone for coming.
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